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Acknowledgement of Country 

Dhawura Nguna Dhawura Ngunnawal 
Ngunnawalwari Dhawurawari 
Nginggada Dindi Yindumaralidjinyin 
Dhawura Ngunnawal Yindumaralidjinyin 

This is Ngunnawal Country. 
We always respect their Elders, male and female. 
We always respect Ngunnawal Country. 

�
����&)*2' �" .�/# ��0'/0-�'�#*./�)�/$*)�*!�/# ����҂�/# ��"0))�2�'�+ *+' ��.���)� --�ҍ.޲�-./�$)#��$/�)/.�
and Traditional Custodians of the ACT and Region. We recognise the special relationship and connection to 
Country that the Ngunnawal people have with this area since time immemorial. 

Prior to non-Indigenous arrival Ngunnawal were a thriving community whose cultural practices were and 
still are core to their physical and spiritual wellbeing. We acknowledge the historical dispossession of the 
Ngunnawal people and recognise the long lasting, profound and ongoing impact to their health and 
well-being that invasion has had on their livelihoods, cultural practices and families as well as the 
continuation of their laws/lore. 
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We also acknowledge other Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples that have made this place 
their home. 
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FROM THE 
CIT BOARD CHAIR 

Craig Sloan 
CIT Board Chair 

I am pleased to present the Canberra Institute of 
Technology (CIT) 2021 Annual Report.  

The CIT Board launched the new Strategic Compass 
2025 – CIT Futures (Strategic Compass) in October 
эыэьҁ��# ��/-�/ "$���*(+�..�*0/'$) .��
�ҍ.�1$.$*)�!*-�



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Introduction to Cyber Security Awareness, was 
introduced in Semester two 2021. This growth has 
been supported by the ongoing success of the CIT 
�-�$)$)"�� �0-$/4��+ -�/$*).�� )/- �Ң����ң҂�/# ޲�-./�
national collaborative training solution to the cyber 
security skills shortage developed in 2018. 

The introduction of electric vehicle training in 2021, 
developed in conjunction with Tesla and Transport 
Canberra, is an exciting addition to our contemporary 
.0$/ �*!�*ȥ -$)".ҁ��#$.�/-�$)$)"�2$''�� � 3+�)� ��
during 2022, facilitated by investment in an electric 
vehicle training simulator. 

CIT continues to explore future skills needs of 
�޲$.- $1�� #/�/-*++0.�*/�4-/.0�($�/$*)�*!�/# �����
economy, creating opportunities to engage with new 
industries and businesses. In undertaking this work 
CIT aims to understand how jobs are changing. CIT is 
supporting small business in the emerging defence 
and space related sectors to understand current 
skill gaps and future demand. As a taster, we were 
very proud of our Year 12 student team who won 
the SpaceHack Imagination Award at the inaugural 
SpaceHack event hosted by the Canberra Innovation 
Network (CBRIN). 

In another challenging year CIT was yet again 
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FROM THE CIT CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Leanne Cover 
�#$ ! �3 �0/$1  �ȥ$� - 

Assisting students to achieve their main reason for 
studying at CIT is at the forefront of all CIT teaching, 
learning and business planning. With the ongoing 
impact of COVID-19, CIT remained committed to 
the provision of quality teaching and learning and 
supporting our students to reach their study goals. 

While 2021 was a complex and challenging year CIT 
was able to deliver strong results for our students, 
with a training satisfaction rating of 88%1 and 83.5%2 

*!�*0-�./0� )/.�� $)"� (+'*4 ���Ȩ -�/-�$)$)"҂�
�*(+�- ��2$/#�ђыҁю۞� (+'*4 ��)�/$*)�''4ҁ��$/#�
ђђ۞3 of graduates citing employment related 
outcomes as their main reason for study, this was an 
excellent result, particularly given the unprecedented 
challenges CIT, like many other businesses, faced in 
эыэь�2$/#�/# �$(+��/�*)�./0� )/.��)��./�ȥ�*!�/# �
extended period of lockdown due to the COVID-19 
pandemic in the ACT. 

Our industry partnership with the Spark Ginninderry 
Training and Employment Initiative, a program aimed 
at key disadvantaged groups who are disconnected 
from the labour market, delivered the JobTrainer 
Industry Explorer Program to help young people 
thinking about future career options across seven 
key industries. 

CIT partnered with community organisations to 
provide a range of targeted training opportunities 
to assist disadvantaged groups of people gain 
employment or move to further study in 2021. 
This included programs such as: Future Skills 
for Future Jobs for school aged students with a 



 

 
 

 

��' �/*����+/�*0-�2*-&!*-� ҂��*0-. �*ȥ -$)".��)��
service and business operations to the changing 
needs of our students, industry partners and the 
rapidly changing nature of jobs and employment. 

�-�).!*-(�/$*)Җ.$5 ���#�)" �$.��ȥ �/$)"��''�"'*��'�
industry sectors, creating unfamiliar landscapes 
and uncertainty for all organisations. It has never 
been more important to understand this constantly 
changing environment, in order to enable CIT to 
(�$)/�$)�- ' 1�)� ��)��1$��$'$/4�!*-�(0/0�'���ҁ/޲ ( 
CIT continued with our transformation work through 
*0-�Ҍ 1*'1$)"�/*" /# -ҍ��++-*��#�/*�0)� -./�)�$)"�
the complexities of the CIT system and the ecosystem 
in which CIT is embedded. This work has empowered 
0.�/*�2*-&�(*- ��*''��*-�/$1 '4��)���$ȥ - )/'4�$)�
a complex environment and to be able to adapt 
�)��- .+*)��/*�/# ��(�$"0$/4�*!�2#�/ҍ.�#�++ )$)"�
in the local and global landscape. This included 
2  &'4�. ..$*).�2$/#�./�ȥ�!-*(���-*..�(0'/$+' ��- �.�
*!��
��$)�'0�$)"�2$/#��''�./�ȥ�/ �(.�/*�'�0)�#�/# �
Strategic Compass, as well as weekly sessions with 
educational and divisional leaders to understand the 
new perspective of dealing with increased complexity 
in our work and the industries and the community 
we serve. The success of this work in collaboration 
and adaptation came to the fore when the ACT was 
once again thrown into lockdown between August 
�)����/*� -�эыэьҁ��*�.0++*-/�./�ȥ��0-$)"�/#$.�+ -$*��
and to keep the focus of our business and on our 
students, twice weekly information sessions were 
# '��!*-��''�./�ȥҁ 

The CIT Business Continuity Plan was enacted under 
/# �' �� -.#$+�*!��# -4'��/ ȥ҂���/$)"��3 �0/$1 �
Director Corporate Services. The health and wellbeing 
*!�./�ȥ҂�./0� )/.��)��/# ������*((0)$/4�2�.�/# �& 4�
priority during this period as CIT was also recognised 
�.��)� 3+*.0- �.$/ ҂�+'��$)"�./�ȥ��)��./0� )/.�
into quarantine. A dedicated COVID Safe Campus 
Learning Manager position was created to work with 
all Departments/Divisions and Colleges to create 
COVID safe plans. In early October CIT recommenced 
limited face-to-face delivery on campus for students 
$)�. ' �/ ������ ޲$/( �$�. .-0*.� .. )/$�'ҁ�

During this challenging time CIT maintained 
coherence and continuity in the provision of learning 
�)��./0� )/��)��./�ȥ�# �'/#��)��.�! /4ҁ�
� .+ �$�''4�
�*(( )��/# ��
��/ ��#$)"�./�ȥ�2#*�,0$�&'4�
responded and adjusted teaching and learning 
activities to meet the needs of students, employers 
and industry at the course and Department scale. 

Under the JobTrainer initiative CIT was allocated 
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ORGANISATIONAL OVERVIEW 

The Canberra Institute of Technology (CIT) was 
founded in 1928 as the Canberra Technical College. 

)�ьєђѐ�$/�� ��( �/# ���)� --���*'' " �*!�� �#)$��'�
and Further Education before merging with Bruce and 
�*� )�����ҍ.��)��� $)"� ./��'$.# ���.�/# ���)� --��

)./$/0/ �*!�� �#)*'*"4�$)�ьєѓђҁ��# �Canberra Institute 
of Technology ACT 1987 legislates CIT as a Territory 
Authority. 

CIT plays a major role in the development of the 
���ҍ.�!0/0- �2*-&!*-� ��)��$)��0$'�$)"�/# �.&$''���. �
of the economy. Its core business is the design and 
facilitation of high-quality vocational programs, 
training and education and services to meet the 
needs of a diverse customer base – locally, nationally, 
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STAKEHOLDERS 
CIT has an extensive network of stakeholders who 
are essential to meeting its Corporate Objectives, 
including students, employers, industry, unions, 
governments and the ACT community. 

CIT has a wide range of industry and business 
partnerships that are critical in helping it stay ahead 
of trends and emerging skills needs for students and 
community outcomes. Developing new partnerships 
and fostering existing partnerships is a key strategic 
priority for CIT (see section on Performance Analysis). 

CIT maintains a close relationship with schools 
and other education providers and has established 
partnerships with universities in the ACT, including 
the University of Canberra (UC), Charles Sturt 
University (CSU), the Australian National University 
(ANU), the University of New South Wales (UNSW) 
and the Australian Catholic University (ACU). These 
relationships enable CIT students to gain university 
credits for their CIT training and for university 
graduates to gain practical skills that employers value 
through training at CIT. 

CIT is a trusted provider of training to support the 
Australian Government and provides training to 
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������������������ STRATEGIC COMPASS 2025 

������������������������
���������������������
�
����������
���	�����
�����������
����������
�������������

Strategic Compass 2025 — Measuring Success 

Digitalisation 

The exponential growth of technology and the 
varied rate of adoption from business to business 
has created uneven digitalisation and digital literacy 
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CIT’S BUSINESS 
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COVID-19 poster 

��ÜU%ׇֿف�
On the back of the disruptions experienced in 2020, 
CIT commenced 2021 with operations guided by the 
'�/ ./���1$� �!-*(�/# ������#$ !�	 �'/#��ȥ$� -��)��
the ACT Government. While the ACT was fortunate 
/*�#�1 �#���1 -4�! 2���. .�*!����
�Җьє�$)�/# ޲�-./�
half of the year, outbreaks throughout the year in 
other jurisdictions highlighted the continued need 
for vigilance and planning to respond to potential 
outbreaks in the ACT. 

When the ACT Government announced a lockdown 
on Thursday 12 August due to an increasing number 
of cases, CIT, armed with the lessons learnt from 
2020, was able to quickly adapt and respond to the 
)  �.�*!�./0� )/.҂�./�ȥ��)��/# ������*((0)$/4ҁ�

�# �# �'/#��)��2 ''� $)"�*!�./�ȥ҂�./0� )/.��)��/# �
ACT community was the key priority during this 
period as CIT was also recognised as an exposure 
.$/ �+'��$)"�./�ȥ��)��./0� )/.�$)/*�,0�-�)/$) ҁ��''�
campuses were physically closed, initially for seven 
days and then extended, in line with ACT Government 
and public health directions. The CIT Business 
Continuity Plan (BCP) was enacted on 12 August and 
/# ��-$.$.���)�" ( )/�� �(�Ң���ң�( /�!*-�/# ޲�-./�
time that day and continued to meet as required until 
the COVID response became more normalised. 

In response to the ACT Government lockdown 
extensions, campuses remained physically closed 
until early October, while teaching and student 
support continued remotely. CIT worked closely with 
relevant ACT Government departments the Australian 
Education Union and the Community and Public 
� �/*-��)$*)҂��)��$)���# - )� �/*�/# ����ҍ.����
�Җьє�

Pathway Forward, CIT began returning to campuses 
to deliver face-to-face training and assessments for 
students in term 4. In late September, “COVID Safe 
Campus Learning” meetings were initiated, and a 
dedicated COVID Safe Campus position was created 
to work with all Departments/Divisions and Colleges 
to understand our collective response and create 
local COVID-safe plans. 
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A summary of key achievements is provided below 
with further information and details of Accountability 
Indicators under the strategic priorities of the 
Strategic Compass 2025 – CIT Futures provided in the 
section on Performance Analysis. 

�����������������������������
�����
�������
	���

> the launch of the new Strategic Compass 2025 – CIT 
Futures�*0/'$)$)"��
�ҍ.�1$.$*)�!*-� (�-��$)"�/#  
future, with the outcomes supporting Canberrans 
to reach their full potential through quality 
education and skills development and shape the 
Canberra of 2025 and beyond 

> being recognised on the international stage at 
the Global Wind Industry Training Awards in 
Copenhagen winning two of nine awards for 
���-���$�)�$�)�"����� ���(���*�!���/�#� ����� ���-���$�)���/�#� �����.�$���´�������$�9������� �"�$�*�) 
and Training Team of the Year – Globally (smaller 
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¯½Ä%-v½�%-t�G§�¤OU�¯�
��٪ق�§-%U½-%٪¤§�G§�t¯�

5.6% 
(1,080) 

. '!Җ$� )/$޲ ���.�
Aboriginal and/or 
Torres Strait Islander 

12.7% 
(2,434) 

. '!Җ$� )/$޲ ���.�
having a disability 

20.6% 
(3,946) 

. '!Җ$� )/$޲ ���.�.+ �&$)"�
a language other than 
English at home 

44.6% 
(8,548) 

��� ޲$/( �$.�! (�'  

3%
(581) 

were international 
students from 64 
countries 

56.2% 

26 years 
AGE 

25 years 
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2022 OUTLOOK 
The CIT priorities and focus for 2022 have been 
1*������ #/�4��� ޲$/( �$ -)( )/��)��/# ��
��
Board through the Strategic Compass 2025 – CIT 
Futures. CIT will continue to contribute to the ACT 
�*1 -)( )/ҍ.��" )���*!�(�&$)"���)� --��(*- �
inclusive, progressive and connected during 2022 
while continuing to follow any ACT Government 
COVID-19 directions or guidelines. 

Delivering on the Strategic Compass CIT will 
continually adapt and align to the commercial 
and regulatory environments and the needs of the 
national and ACT environment. Implementation of 
the Strategic Compass will include: 

> - 1$ 2��)��- ��-0"޲(*/$*)�*!��*0-. �*ȥ -$)". 

> contemporary workforce development of teaching 
�)��)*)Җ/ ��#$)"�./�ȥ 

> reviewing and assessing performance 
$)�$��/*-. /* �++-*+-$�� ޳ -�4' //�/# ��0-- )/ 
VET environment 

> �'��޲$-�/$*)��)���"-  ( )/�*)�/# �-*' �*!��
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CIT BOARD 
The CIT Board, established in 2015 under Section 9 
of the Canberra Institute of Technology Act 1987 (CIT 
Act), consists of a minimum of seven and no more 
than 11 members, appointed by the ACT Government 
Minister for Skills. The CIT CEO is a Board member 
in accordance with Section 80 (4) of the Financial 
Management Act 1996 (FMA). 

As required by Section 56 of the FMA, the CIT Board is 
'$��' ҂�0)� -�/# �- .+*).$�' ��$)$./ -҂�!*-�/# � ȥ$�$ )/�



     

    



 

 

both strategic and operational risk management 





 

 
 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 
 

  

 

CIT Executive and Functional Structure 

Minister for Skills 
Chris Steel MLA 

CIT Solutions Board 
Craig Sloan, Chair 

CIT Board 
Craig Sloan, Chair 

���#�$� �!�����3� ���0�/�$�1� �����%�$��� �- 
Leanne Cover 

General Manager 
CIT Solutions 

Catherine Ng 

Industry Engagement
and Strategic Relations 

Executive Director 
Alice Clements (A/g) 

Education and Training
Services 

Executive Director 
Andrew Whale 

Corporate Services
Executive Director 
���#� �-�4�'�����/� �%���¢���¨�"�£ 

Marketing 

Strategic Communications 

Strategic Growth and 
Transformation 

Renewables 

Industry Engagement 
Business Growth and Development 
Australian Apprenticeships and CRN 

Creation 

$�$.*)҂��4��-*޲'$)"��)���*)/$)0*0.�

Improvement 

College 

CIT Technology & Design 
Creative and Design Industries 

Graphics, Entertainment, Media 
and Music 

Hairdressing and Beauty Therapy 

Horticulture and Floristry 

Information, Communication 
and Technology 

Centre for Cyber Security 

Student Services 
Client Relationship 



     

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CIT Senior Executive Team 
The Senior Executive Team comprises the CIT CEO; 
the Executive Director, Education and Training 
Services; the Executive Director, Industry Engagement 
and Strategic Relations; the Executive Director, 
Corporate Services; the Senior Director Finance; and 
the Senior Director Human Resources. The Executive 
Team work collaboratively and report to the CEO. 

CIT CEO, Leanne Cover, reports 
directly to the CIT Board and provides 
strategic leadership across CIT. The 
CEO is responsible for ensuring CIT is 
operationalising the four pillars of the 
Strategic Compass. A major foundation 

piece for the CEO is the development of system-
wide adaptive capacity to ensure the relevance 
and long-term future of CIT, continually evolving to 
a business model able to compete in the rapidly 
�#�)"$)"��)���*(+ /$/$1 ����� )1$-*)( )/ҁ��
�ҍ.�
CEO drives the long-term vision of CIT by ensuring 
 ȥ �/$1 �� '$1 -4�*!�+-*"-�(.҄��)��(�$)/�$)$)"�
productive relationships with the Minister, leaders 
in the ACT public sector, other training providers 
and educational organisations. The CEO provides 
leadership to the Executive Team in quality VET 
outcomes: strategic planning and governance; 
./�ȥ҂��*((0)$/4��)��./�& #*'� -� )"�" ( )/҄�
creating a compelling stude1.n0 (a)4.8 (nc)5.1 (63.9 (c)1.8g23)7.3 (i)11.8 (l8 <0026>11.7)i>39-0.8 anc; 
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��� �)�$�*�-�����$�-� ���/�*�-�‚���	�0�(���)����� �-�1�$��� �.�‚�����#� �-�4�'�����/� �%��



     

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

���������� �����

To support the CIT Board and the CEO by providing timely, professional and 
$)!*-(�/$1 ���1$� �$)�- '�/$*)�/*�& 4�./-�/ "$���$- �/$*)�. //$)"��)��/# � ȥ$�$ )/��)��
 ȥ �/$1 �*+ -�/$*)�*!��
�ҁ�����$.����*0)/��' �!*-�/# �+ -!*-(�)� �*0/�*( .�*!��
��
through the implementation and monitoring of strategic, operational, educational, 
+ *+' ���(޲��()�$�'��0.$) ..�+'�).��)��+-*� .. .��)��!*-� ).0-$)"�/#�/��++-*+-$�/ �
frameworks, delegations, policies, procedures and resourcing are in place to support 
the delivery of CIT strategic and operational objectives. EMC is chaired by the CEO 
and made up of the executive team. 

Academic Council is the principal academic governance body of CIT. 

Academic governance is the framework of policies, structures, relationships, systems 
and processes that provide direction and oversight of academic activities (teaching, 
learning, assessment and research) at CIT. This includes regulation of the quality and 
standards of performance of CIT VET services. There are four committees (described 
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PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS 

Servicing more ACT students than any other post ¯½Ä%-v½��Ä½��t-¯٪فschool education provider and as the public provider 
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 1 of VET, CIT is committed to continual improvement 

supported by ongoing monitoring and auditing to 
ensure delivery of nationally consistent, high-quality 
training and assessment services required to meet 
the VET Quality Framework, and Higher Education 
Standards. CIT also specialises in the delivery of 
/# ������ )$*-�� �*)���޲$/- ��4-�/ �/*�(�/0- ��" �
students. 

CIT delivers 29 national training packages across 
/# ��0./-�'$�)��0��޲$'�/$*)��-�( 2*-&�Ң���ң҂�!-*(�
��޲$/- �/ �
�/*�"-��0�/ ���޲$/- �/ �' 1 '.��)���''�Fields 
of Educationҁ��.�*!�� � (� -�эыэь҂��
�ҍ.�.�*+ �*!�
registration included 183 current training package 
,0��޲$'�/$*).҂�ьё����Җ���- �$/ ���*0-. .��)��/2*�
Higher Education courses. 

CIT has Australian Skills Quality Authority (ASQA) 
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For CIT graduates in 2021:  

> ѓюҁѐ۞�2 - � (+'*4 ���Ȩ -�/-�$)$)"��*(+�- ��2$/# 
ђыҁю۞ )�/$*)�''4 

> 52.1% were not employed before training, 
 (+'*4 ���Ȩ -�/-�$)$)"��*(+�- ��2$/#�яьҁѓ۞ 
nationally 

> 92.2% were employed or in further study 
�*(+�- ��2$/#�ѓяҁђ۞�)�/$*)�''4 

> юѐҁѓ۞�2 - � )-*'' ��$)�!0-/# -�./0�4��Ȩ -�/-�$)$)" 
compared with 40.1% nationally 

> 84.9% achieved the main reason for study 
compared with the national average of 83.8%. 

��٪ֿ׀־׀��Äv½��UjU½ã٪
INDICATORS 
CIT delivers VET through ACT Government Controlled 
Recurrent Payment (CRP), the ACT Government 
Skilled Capital program, funding for Australian 
Apprenticeships, the JobTrainer Program and 
commercial activities delivered by CIT and its 
subsidiary, CIT Solutions. 

Historically, student activity data for the ACT Budget 
Accountability Indicators reported in the Statement 
*!�� -!*-(�)� �!*�0. ��.+ ��޲$�''4�*)�/# �.0�. /�
*!��
�ҍ.� �0��/$*)�� '$1 -4�/#�/�$.�.0�.$�$. ���4�
the ACT Government through Appropriation/CRP. 
� ޳ -�/*(��$��.$#�/�/# �!3 �''0/ )/�*!��
�ҍ.�/-�$)$)"�
delivery as it excluded non-CRP funded training, 
2#$�#�#�.�� �*( ��)�$)�- �.$)"�+-*+*-/$*)�*!��
�ҍ.�
delivery in recent years.  Recognising this, in 2021 CIT 
introduced updated Accountability Indicators that 
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Subject Enrolments 
Subject Enrolments refers to student enrolments in 
each individual Unit of Competency for the reporting 
+ -$*�҂��.�*++*. ��/*���!0''�,0��޲$'�/$*)ҁ��# �)0(� -�
*!�.0�% �/� )-*'( )/.�!*-�эыэь�2�.�ььь҂яёя�- ޳ �/$)"�
a 3% variance above the target of 108,000. As a new 
Accountability Indicator, there is no comparative 
data. 

¯ɍƣǬƲƤɅ٪ƇǾƫ٪tȉƫɍǳƲ٪¤Ƈȷȷ٪§ƇɅƲȷ�
Subject and Module Pass Rates refer to the 
proportion of subject enrolments issued with a grade 
indicating successful completion of a VET Unit of 
Competency during the reporting period. 

The Module Pass Rates indicator only includes 
/#*. � )-*'( )/.�0)� -��
�ҍ.�./�)��-��"*1 -)( )/Җ
subsidised enrolment scheme (formerly referred to 
�.�Ҍ�-*޲' ҍ� )-*'( )/.ң��)���* .�)*/�$)�'0� �*/# -�
enrolment types such as User Choice (Australian 
Apprenticeships), Commercial, Skilled Capital, or 
other government-funded arrangements. The Module 
pass rate for 2021 was 81%, an 8% variance above the 
эыэь�/�-" /�*!�ђѐ۞ 

The limitations of the Module Pass Rates indicator 
were deemed acceptable when the indicator was 
introduced in 2005. Since then, the VET landscape 
Ң�)���
�ҍ.�*+ -�/$*).ң�#�.� 1*'1 �҂�2$/#��)�$)�- �.$)"�
+-*+*-/$*)�*!��
�ҍ.���/$1$/4�)*�'*)" -��*1 - ���4�
this measure. As this indicator no longer provides 
�)��� ,0�/ �1$ 2�*!��
�ҍ.�*+ -�/$*).҂�$/�$.�� $)"�
discontinued and replaced by the Subject Pass 
Rates�$)�$��/*-�Ң/# �2*-��Ҍ�*�0' ҍ�#�.��  )�0+��/ ��
/*�Ҍ�0�% �/ҍ�/*��� ޳ -�- // /��*)/ (+*-�-4�����
/ -($)*'*"4ңҁ��#$.�) 2�$)�$��/*-���+/0- .��''�*!��
�ҍ.�
enrolments and activity, providing enhanced visibility 
�)��/-�).+�- )�4�*!��
�ҍ.� )/$- �*+ -�/$*).҂��)��$)�
particular includes those government-subsidised 
enrolments that were not covered by the older 
measure. 

For 2021 CIT recorded an 86% subject pass rate, 
1% above the target of 85%. As a new accountability 
indictor there is no comparative data available for 
this year. 

Nominal Hours 
Nominal Hours (training hours) is the nationally 
accepted quantitative output measure for the 
VET sector. 

> CIT delivered 5.2 million training hours in 2021, 
an 18% increase on the 4.4 million training hours 
delivered in 2020. 

> �#$.�$)�'0� .�э҂ёѓэ҂ьёђ�/-�$)$)"�#*0-.�!*-�+0�'$�'4 
funded programs (2,456,123 in 2020), above the 
2021 target by a positive variance of 3%. The 
remaining training hours are delivered though 
contestable programs. 

Program Enrolments 
> Program enrolments for 2021 in government 

subsidised programs at 9,822 showed a 16% 
1�-$�)� �� '*2�/# �эыэь�/�-" /�*!�ьь҂ђыы��0/��) 
increase compared to 9,558 in 2020. 

> �$/#$)�/#$.�/*/�'�!*-�эыэь҂�,0��޲$'�/$*).�.#*2 � 
a greater reduction than short courses as 
students continue to move away from pursuing 
,0��޲$'�/$*).�$)�!�1*0-�*!�$)�$1$�0�'�.&$''. /.ҁ��#  
COVID-19 pandemic again negatively impacted 
program enrolments in 2021, although to a slightly 
lesser extent than 2020. 

> As mentioned on page 33, CIT only has a program 
enrolment target for government subsidised 
+-*"-�(.҂�2#$�� ޳ -�/*(�. *��#/��
�ҍ.�!0''� 3/ )/ 
*!�/-�$)$)"�� '$1 -4ҁ��# )��*).$� -$)"��''�*!��
�ҍ. 
training delivery, CIT received an increased total 
*!�эє҂эяѐ�+-*"-�(� )-*'( )/.��*(+�- ��/*�эђ҂єьђ 
in 2020. 

Program Completions 
> There were 3,382 (3,102 in 2020) program 

�*(+' /$*).�Ң$)�'0� .�,0��޲$'�/$*).�0)� -�/#  
AQF and does not include skill sets, statements of 
attainment and non-accredited training such as 
ACE programs). This was a 25% variance below the 
2021 target of 4,500. 

> Like program enrolments, program completions 
were also below target due to the continuing 
trend of students moving away from pursuing 
!0''�,0��޲$'�/$*).�$)�!�1*0-�*!�$)�$1$�0�'�.&$''�. /. 
and the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 
and 2021. 

Learner and Employer Satisfaction 
Rate 
Learner and employer satisfaction rates are 
measured through the Learner Engagement Survey 
and Employer Satisfaction Survey. These surveys 
are conducted in line with the ASQA Data Provision 
Requirements 2012 and the National Vocational 
�����0�����/�$�*�)�����)�������-���$�)�$�)�"����� �"�0�'���/�*�-�������/���k�i�j�j provisions. 
All RTOs are required to use mandatory tools to 
collect learner engagement and employer satisfaction 
quality indicator data. 
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HIGHLIGHTS 
CIT does not operate in isolation from the many 
complex social and economic systems within 
which it is nested. The Strategic Compass 2025 – 
CIT Futures articulates the strategic priorities for CIT 
and all activities conducted at CIT are focused on 
the enablement of the four strategic pillars of the 
Strategic Compass. These are demonstrated in many 
outcomes across CIT and within the ACT community. 
We serve the community in multiple ways including: 

> partnering with industry to increase productivity 
and position the new economy for prosperity 

> enabling access and opportunity for social and 
economic success including the development of 
the ACT community, services and infrastructure 

> 
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Apprenticeships and Trainees 
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¯ɅȯƲƇǼǳǛǾǛǾǍ٪Ü-½٪½ȯƇǛǾǛǾǍ٪¤ȯȉƤƲȷȷ�
for School-aged Students 
CIT proactively engaged with the ACT Education 
Directorate, Catholic and Independent schools to 
streamline the process for school-aged students 
seeking to engage in vocational training at CIT. CIT 
also collaborated with the BSSS in 2021 to ensure 
./0� )/.�2 - ���' �/*� ȥ$�$ )/'4� )"�" ���(޲��('$. �
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tƇɅɍȯƲ٪ÝȉȯǯƲȯȷ٪¤ȯȉǍȯƇǼ�
��"-��$3 ޳� �1$*-+�*/�/(' �/-�$)$)"҂� �0��/$*)�
and services, while supporting mature workers to 
overcome barriers to skills development and career 
progression is seeing a positive and steady increase 
in 2021 and has already reached near-2019 levels of 
 )"�" ( )/ҁ��#$' �/# �"-�)/�#�.�*ȥ$�$�''4��*)�'0� ��
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Bridge Challenge 

The annual CIT Construction and Engineering Bridge 
Challenge saw teams from ACT schools competing to 
create the strongest bridge. The challenge was open 
to students enrolled in years 9 and 10 or enrolled in 
�0$'�$)"��)���*)./-0��޲$/- ��(*$/�/ �
�*-�

��/�.�#**'ҁ�
�# � 1 )/�#�.��  )�-0))$)"�.$)� �эыьё��)��/#$.�4 �-ҍ.�
challenge had over 23 teams competing with industry 
support from National Association of Women in 
Construction, Geocon, Project Coordination and 
the ACT Training Fund Authority. The competition 
demonstrates the many career opportunities 
available in the construction and engineering 
industries. St Francis Xavier Team 3 was the overall 
winner with Gungahlin College winning the maximum 
'*�����--$ ���)�� ȥ$�$ )�4��)���$)".!*-���($/#�/ �(�
taking out innovation and aesthetics. 

���#� �!�•�.���	���/ 

�# ��))0�'�� ./'į��*'� )��# !ҍ.�	�/��0'$)�-4�
competition supports apprentices and junior chefs 
and provides a chance to showcase their skills in a 
'$1 ��**&Җ*ȥҁ �2*��
���*(( -�$�'��**& -4�./0� )/.�
�*(+ / ��$)�эыэь�2$/#��*�#���$-)�0ȥ�2$))$)"���
Silver Medal and Riley Angelosante a Bronze in the 
regional round. 

Student Support 
With the impact of COVID -19 on students in 2020 
and 2021 CIT student support services introduced 
telehealth, video streaming and phone counselling 

services as part of its response to remote learning. 
While the uptake of these was slow to begin with 
/# - �2�.���(�-& ���$ȥ - )� �$)�эыэь�2$/#�./0� )/.�
being more able and accepting of technology in 
relation to these services. CIT will continue to provide 
/# . �*+/$*).��.�$/�#�.�$(+-*1 ��/# � ȥ$�$ )�4�
of service delivery across multiple campuses. 
In 2020 CIT recorded a total of 4,458 counselling 
appointments for 1,168 clients, increasing to 5,350 
counselling appointments in 2021 for 1,520 clients. 
These include youth, migrants, international 
students, students with a disability and students 
seeking careers advice. 
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���%�*�-�������'�  �
�� ���,�0�$�+�(� �)�/ 

During 2021 the CIT Student Association (CITSA) 
partnered with Worldview Technologies to provide 
�ȥ*-���' �
�� ,0$+( )/�!*-�./0� )/.�$)�)  �ҁ��1 -�яы�
devices were provided. The Laptop Initiative started 
$)�эыэы�2$/#�/# �2/.-޲��1 �*!����
�Җьє�'*�&�*2).�/*�
 ).0- ��''�./0� )/.�#������ ..�/*��ȥ*-���' �'�+/*+�
or desktop computers to be able to study from 
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Employment Workshops for Students 

Industry Speed Dating Event 

-ǼȬǳȉɬǼƲǾɅ�ÝȉȯǯȷǕȉȬȷ�ǌȉȯ�
Students 
CIT students looking to enter the job market have 
undertaken a series of workshops at CIT Reid, aimed 
at readying them for the challenges of employment. 
While the workshops were open to all students, most 
attendees were international students. 

�# �/2*�2*-&.#*+.҂�*-"�)$. ���4�./�ȥ�!-*(��
� 
Libraries and the Accounting and Project Management 
Department, covered a range of topics including 
writing a CV and preparing for interviews, to help 
� �$� #��ҁ&-*�2�(޲�./( �0/.�� #$)��/# . �2*-&.#*+. 
was to give students a chance to learn more about the 
intricacies of the Australian job market. 

�ȉǾǾƲƤɅǛǾǍ٪¯ɅɍƫƲǾɅȷ٪ɦǛɅǕ�
Employers 
Connecting students with employers is a key 
strategy for improving employment outcomes. CIT 
hosts a variety of industry events and activities 
to increase connections between students and 
employers including employment expos, site visits to 
Canberra companies (in person or virtual), industry 
presentations to students and networking events. 
Some examples for 2021 are provided below. 

Industry Speed Dating Event 

An industry speed dating event for CIT accounting 
students provided an opportunity to meet 
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and engagement. This support from CIT has been 
fundamental to the success of the Program which 
this year saw more graduates than ever before secure 
jobs prior to graduation, with 15 out of 16 participants 
 ҁ/( )(- 1*������ #/�($�/( )4*'+) �"($�(޲
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Student visit to McArthur Wind Farm in Victoria 

��v½-t¤�§�§ã�̄gUjj¯�
In another challenging year CIT has again been 
recognised as the ACT Large Training Provider of 
the Year Award at the ACT Training Awards. This 
�2�-��- �*")$. .��)�����/#�/�*ȥ -.����-*���-�)" �
of training products and services and demonstrates 
excellence and high-level performance in all aspects 
of VET. The award is testament to the high-quality 
training and services CIT provides. 

In line with the implementation of the Strategic 
Compass, CIT commenced a major review of current 
�*0-. .҂�/-�).!*-($)"��*0-. �*ȥ -$)".�/*� ).0- �
/#�/��''��*0-. .�*ȥ - ��- ޳ �/��0-- )/��)�� ( -"$)"�
industry employment needs. All course development 
is focused on delivering employment outcomes for 
./0� )/.��)��$)�- ��$3 ޳�� .$'$/(4�$��4- $1' �*+/$*).ҁ�
This work will continue to be prioritised in 2022. 

§ƲǾƲɦƇƣǳƲ�-ǾƲȯǍɬ�
CIT is at the forefront in upskilling and developing 
new training to prepare for the expected workforce 
growth in the renewable energy sector. CIT has 
partnered with industry in the renewables sector 
since 2015 to deliver industry-relevant skills and 



     

 

Industry Collaboration Award 

The CIT renewable energy industry collaboration 
is a joint approach to researching and building 
sustainable networks, training opportunities and 
career pathways for jobs in the global renewable 
sector. CIT has formed a strong partnership with 
Neoen and Vestas, both global leaders in this 
exciting and evolving industry sector, through the 
establishment of the CIT Renewable Skills Centre 
of Excellence. The partnership was awarded the 
Industry Collaboration Award at the ACT Training 
Awards and the Industry Collaboration Award at 
the 2021 Australian Training Awards. The Industry 
Collaboration category recognises an exemplary skills 
development collaboration between at least one 
employer/industry body and at least one organisation 
delivering nationally recognised training. 

Electric Vehicle Training 
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Forensic Training 
During 2021 CIT collaborated with several state 
government departments to discuss the future 
/-�$)$)"�)  �.�*!��0./-�'$�ҍ.��*'$� ��*-� ҁ��
��
negotiated and secured Training Agreements with 
both NSW Police Force and NT Police, Fire and 
Emergency Service to be the preferred provider of 
Forensic Training. The training agreements include 
+-*1$.$*)�*!�!*0-�!*- ).$��,0��޲$'�/$*).�$)����' )� ��
delivery model which comprises online learning 
and short residential programs to facilitate practical 
demonstration. These two new training agreements 
 3+�)���
�ҍ.�'*)"./�)�$)"�� '$1 -4�*!�#$"#Җ' 1 '҂�
.+ �$�'$. ��!*- ).$��,0��޲$'�/$*).��)��� (*)./-�/ �
�
�ҍ.���$'$/4�/*�+-*1$� ��*(+' 3�/-�$)$)"�+-*"-�(.�/*���
range of participants. 

Cyber Security Training 
Demand for cyber security courses continued to 
"-*2ҁ��)-*'( )/.�$)�/# �� -/$޲��/ �
��$)��4� -�
� �0-$/4�$)�- �.$)"��4�юѐҁђ۞�!-*(�яѓђ� )-*'( )/.�
in 2020 to 661 enrolments in 2021.The statement of 
attainment course Introduction to Organisational 
Cyber Security Awareness increased from 30 
 )-*'( )/.�$)�эыэы�/*�ьѐђ� )-*'( )/.�$)�эыэь��)��
a new statement of attainment course Introduction 
to Cyber Security Awareness was introduced in 
Semester two 2021.  

��½٪ÜȉƤƇɅǛȉǾƇǳ�
¯ɅɍƫƲǾɅ٪ȉǌ٪ɅǕƲ٪ãƲƇȯ�
– Banda Ramadan 
Banda Ramadan, 2021 winner of the ACT Training 
Awards Vocational Student of the Year, is forging 
��) 2���-  -�$)��4� -�. �0-$/4��Ȩ -��*(+' /$)"���
�޲$/- ��/ �
��$)��4� -�� �0-$/4��/��
�ҁ 

“I am so pleased to receive this award. I love 
my new career and the CIT course really helped 
me with the skills I need for the cyber security 
industry,” she said. 

��)���/�0"#/��*(+0/ -�.�$ )� ��)��.*Ȩ2�- �
engineering courses at universities in Jordan and 
Saudi Arabia before choosing to specialise in cyber 
security. 

“I was very interested in changing my career to 
cyber security, especially as there is a global 
shortage of experts.” 

The CIT cyber security team had discussions with 
local cyber security company, Ionise, to develop 
��-�)" �*!�(0/0�''4���޲ ( $�'�+-*% �/.҂�$)�'0�$)"�
sharing industry intelligence, input into the physical 
requirements of the Training Security Operations 
Centre (TSOC) at the new CIT Woden campus, 
representation on Industry Advisory Group and 
potential work placements for CIT students. 

Australian Government Digital Apprenticeship 
Induction 

CIT has been delivering training to trainees from the 
Digital Transformation Agency through the Australian 
Government Digital Apprenticeship Program for close 
to 13 years. In 2021 CIT enrolled 51 new trainees 
across several ICT statements of attainment and the 
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The CIT CEO represented CIT and was joined by 
representatives from across the CIT landscape, 
including Business Development, Woden CIT design 
team and the Centre for Cyber Security. 

tƲǾɅƇǳ٪OƲƇǳɅǕ٪FǛȯȷɅ٪�Ǜƫ٪½ȯƇǛǾǛǾǍ�
� )/�'�# �'/#�$.�*) �*!��0./-�'$�ҍ.�)�/$*)�'�# �'/#�
+-$*-$/4��- �.ҁ�
4��� ޲$.( /(�/# ����
�Җьє�+�)� ($�҂�
CIT has seen a sharp increase in requests for Mental 
Health in the Workforce training over 2021. In 
partnership with Mental Health First Aid Australia, 
CIT delivers several commercial courses via various 
delivery options. During 2021 CIT delivered 18 
Mental Health First Aid courses to 182 participants. 
Additionally, CIT developed a custom Mental Health 
Awareness program for the Environment, Planning 
and Sustainable Development Directorate (EPSDD) 
with two sessions delivered to 29 participants in 2021 
and ongoing delivery planned in 2022 and 2023. 

PARTNERSHIPS 
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DIGITALISATION 
�*-�/# �'�� �4 1޲�/.-.��
��#�.�$)1 ./ ��$)�/# �
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Art and Technology 
Combine 
Visual Arts teacher, Bernie Slater has worked 
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CIT Zero CO2 Collaborative Innovation Program – 
Innovation Lab ¯ǼƇǳǳ٫�ɍȷǛǾƲȷȷƲȷ٪ƇǾƫ٪½ȯƇƫƲȷ�
In 2021 CIT hosted the CIT Zero CO2 Collaborative 
Innovation Lab: Renewable Skills of the Future, 
a workshop bringing together industry and CIT 
./�ȥ�/*�$� )/$!4�!0/0- �.&$''.�)  �.��)��2�4.�!*-�
CIT to partner, prepare for, and deliver to these 
future needs. Approximately 30 representatives 
from industries who support Zero CO2 attended, 
including Green Hydrogen, Food Waste Reduction, 
Solar and Grid Management, Battery and PV and the 
�) -"4��ȥ$�$ )/��0$'�$)"�. �/*-ҁ��# ( .�*!�/# �.(�''�
group discussions at the Collab workshop included 
designing training which provided the skills that 
industry graduates need now and in the future. 

§ƲƤɬƤǳǛǾǍ٪Fȉȉƫ٪ÝƇȷɅƲ�
The CIT Hospitality Department commenced 
recycling food waste in 2021 utilising the services 
of Goterra, an on-site food waste management 
technology and service that disposes of waste via 
modular insect farms, turning local food waste into 
livestock feed for Australian farms. This resulted 
in over 5,000 kg of food waste recycled, 225kg of 
livestock feed produced and a saving of over 10,000 
kgs of CO2 emissions. 

GOTERRA scorecard for the Food Recycling Waste system 
established in 2021 by CIT Hospitality Department. 

CIT in collaboration with Epicorp (not-for-
�� -0/( �1/޲*-+�+$/���ң)-޲�')�����
�҂�#*./ ����
competition and series of online workshops to 
support Canberra small businesses to grow and 
future-proof themselves to mitigate the impact of 
the COVID-19 lockdowns. 

The online workshops helped guide the progression 
of a business idea or concept. The workshops also 
helped the small businesses adjust to the various 
impacts of the pandemic including how to test new 
ideas to meet new expectations and customer needs. 

Six Canberra businesses were recognised as prize 
winners in 2021 and received $5,000 as well as either 
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CIT SOLUTIONS 
CIT Solutions Pty Ltd (the Company) is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CIT that reports to the Australian 
Securities and Investments Commission under the 
Corporations Act 2001ҁ��
���*'0/$*).ҍ���(޲�� /$�0)�$�'�
./�/ ( )/.��- ��*).*'$��/ ��2$/#$)��
�ҍ.޲�)�)�$�'�
statements in this report (see Financial Management 
Reporting). 

CIT Solutions delivers a range of professional 
development courses and nationally recognised 
,0��޲$'�/$*).�!-*(�/# ��0./-�'$�)��0��޲$'�/$*).�
�-�( 2*-&�0)� -��
�ҍ.�� "$./ - ���-�$)$)"�
Organisation status (RTO 0101) to government and 
corporate sectors. These programs and consultancy 
services are delivered to clients in the ACT, interstate 
and internationally. 

CIT Solutions also provides training in an extensive 
range of foreign languages and marketing services 
to CIT to recruit international students. Lifelong 
' �-)$)"�*++*-/0)$/$ .��- �*ȥ - ��/*�' �-) -.�/#-*0"#�
a comprehensive suite of professional development 
and recreational interest short courses. 

During 2021, 2065 students were enrolled in our 
���- �$/ ��+-*"-�(.��)��ѐ҂ыђѓ�' �-) -.� )-*'' ��$)�
a non-accredited short course through either online, 
face-to-face or virtual delivery modes. 

Financially, the Company achieved $16.923 million in 
revenue returning an operating surplus for the year of 
�эҁьюђ�($''$*)҂�2#$ۅ#�$)�- ��ьҁыыя�($''$*)�$)ۅ�(*-!�� .
2020. This result was achieved with a core workforce 
*!�ѓђ� (+'*4  .��)��.0++*-/ ���4���$3 ޳�' �
workforce of 215 employees in 2021. 

CIT Solutions successful won contracts with Australian 
Government Departments in 2021 to meet their training 
needs by customising and delivering training programs. 

Six programs under the Government Public Sector 
,0��޲$'�/$*).�2 - �+�0. ���0-$)"�/# ����
�Җьє 
lockdown while we have successfully transited other 
programs to virtual instructor-led classes to minimise 



 
 

 

restrictions and increasing its stakeholder 
engagement and digital communications. The 
onshore market was a key focus for 2021 with 
.�#*'�-.#$+.�� $)"�*ȥ - ��/*� '$"$�' �*).#*- �
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INTERNAL AUDIT 

INTERNAL AUDIT 
¤§�G§�t�
The aim of the Internal Audit program is to provide 



     

 

 
  

 

 

  
 

 
 

  
 

  

  
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 
 

monitors progress of the program at each ordinary 
meeting through status update reports. Findings 
and actions to address audit recommendations are 
�$.�0.. ��/*� ).0- �/# 4��- �*)�/-��&��)�� ȥ �/$1 '4�
��ҁ.&.$-�� ޲$/( �$�"($.. -��

�U½٪�Ä%U½٪��ttU½½--�
Established in 2015 as a subcommittee of the CIT 
Board, the CIT Audit Committee performs a key 
corporate governance role within the organisation, 
supported by the Head of Internal Audit and the 
Audit, Risk and Corporate Governance team. 
�޲$("$��)/'4҂�/# ��0�$/��*(($//  �+-*1$� .�
independent, objective advice and assurance on risk 
and control, compliance and external accountability 
responsibilities. 

The CIT internal audit function and Audit Committee 
is conducted in accordance with the ACT Government 
Framework for Internal Audit Committee and Function 
(February 2020), the International Professional 
Practices Framework (IPPF) and the CIT Internal Audit 
Charter. 

The Audit Committee is authorised by the CIT Board 
to carry out its role and responsibilities under the 
Audit Committee Charter and through the Audit, Risk 
and Corporate Governance team to: 

> obtain any information required from any 
employee and/or external party (subject to their 
legal obligation under the Information Privacy ACT 
2014 and Public Sector Management Act 1994) 

> discuss any matters with internal or external 
auditors, or other external parties (subject to their 
legal obligations) 

> request the attendance of any employee, including 
/# ��#$ !��3 �0/$1 ��ȥ$� -҂��/��*(($//  �(  /$)". 

> obtain legal or other professional advice, as 
considered necessary to meet its obligations, at 
CIT expense. 

The Audit Committee meeting agendas are based 
*)��)��))0�'�+-*"-�(�*!�2*-&�� -$1 ��!-*(��
�ҍ.�
strategic risks, and responsibilities are documented 
in the Audit Committee Charter. The Audit Committee 
also reviews and endorses the Audit Committee 
Charter and the Internal Audit Charter annually for 
approval by the CIT Board. The Chair of the Audit 
Committee formally reports to the CIT Board Chair 
�)��/# ��
������*)���޲$("$.�4(�)/�(�// -.�/#�/�(�4�
impact CIT operations. These issues are also reported 
to the CIT Executive Management Committee (EMC). 

In 2021, the Audit Committee comprised three 
members; two independent members and one 
member from the CIT Board who was also the 
Deputy Chair. 

The Board member appointed to the committee is 
remunerated as a Board member and receives no 
additional remuneration for the Audit Committee (see 
section on organisational overview). Independent 
members of the committee are remunerated on a set 
rate per meeting attended under contract with CIT 



 

 

� (� -.ҍ��// )��)� ��/��0�$/��*(($//  �(  /$)".�!-*(�ь���)0�-4�җ�юь�� � (� -�эыэь�
is detailed in the table below. 

•��������
‚�������•��…��� •�������� „
�������
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FRAUD PREVENTION 

The ACT Government Public Sector Management 
Standards 2016



FREEDOM OF INFORMATION 

CIT is committed to the principles of open, transparent and accountable governance, decision making and 
operations consistent with the objectives and provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2016 (FOI Act). 
Summary data for each access application received during 2021 is provided below. Details of individual 
applications and decisions are published on the CIT Freedom of Information (FOI) Disclosure Log. 

Š����€������†�����������•���������‰‹�Œ‡Ž�Œ�Ž�Œ�Ž‘�Œ��Ž���	�Œ���Ž�

„����������� •�����

Number of decisions to publish Open Access information 8 

Number of decisions not to publish Open Access information 0 

Number of decisions not to publish a description of Open Access information 
withheld 

0 

•Š†�€������������������	���	�	�������������•���������‰‹�Œ‡Ž�Œ�Ž�Œ��Ž‘�Œ���Ž‘�Œ����Ž���	�Œ�’Ž�

„����������� •�����

Number of access applications received 1 

Number of applications where access to all information requested was given 0 

Number of applications where access to only some of the information requested 
was given (partial release) 

1 

Number of applications where access to the information was refused 0 

•Š†�•����������•���������•���������‰‹�Œ‡Ž�Œ�Ž���	�Œ��Ž“���������‰‹�Œ‡Ž�Œ	Ž�



     

 

€���	��������•��������†�����������•���������‰‹�Œ�Ž�Œ’Ž���	���������‰‹�Œ‡Ž�Œ�Ž�

Description Total 

Number of requests made to amend personal information, and the decisions 
made 

0 

�����”��•���������‰‹�Œ‡Ž�Œ…Ž“���������‰‹�Œ‡Ž�Œ�Ž�

Description Total 
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> TASTE 2021 – approximately 300 secondary 
school students attended CIT Reid on Friday 4 
�0) �эыэь�/*�#�1 ���Ҍ�����ҍ�*!�2#�/�����-  -�$) 
bakery, patisserie, commercial cookery, events, 
hospitality, travel and tourism would be like. 

> CIT Building and Engineering Bridge Challenge 
– 86 students from 11 ACT schools competed on 
Friday 18 June 2021 to design and construct the 
strongest bridge possible in time-trialled heats. 
The challenge was open to students enrolled 
in years 9 and 10 or enrolled in a building and 
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�U½٪Ý�%-v٪��t¤Ä¯٪
��ق�ttÄvU½ã�
CONSULTATION 
In 2021, CIT undertook engagement with stakeholders 
for the new CIT Woden and CIT Yurauna projects. 
Both projects are part of the Major Projects Canberra 
(MPC) CIT Woden project. 

�
��./�ȥ��)��./0� )/.� )"�" ��2$/#�/# ������
��
Woden Team facilitating working groups to inform 
the functional design brief for the new campus at 
Woden. This took the form of collaborative co-design 
workshops and included representatives from 
government, industry and innovation sectors. The 
2*-&.#*+.��'��(0!� #/�� ޲$-/$*)�'�- ,0$- ( )/.�*!�
/# ��0$'�$)"�2$/#�$)�0./-4��)��./�ȥ� 3+ -/.ҁ 

CIT worked with the Design Innovation Research 
Centre (DIRC) from the University of Technology 
�4�) 4�Ң���ң�/*�0)� -/�& �./0� )/҂�./�ȥ��)��$)�0./-4�
workshops, underpinned by Human Centred Design 
Principles to inform the reference design for the 
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�U½٪��ttÄvU½ã٪¯Ä¤¤�§½٪UvU½U�½UÜ-¯�
�$/#�$/.��*((0)$/4��)��$)�0./-4�+�-/) -.҂��
��*ȥ -.���-�)" �*!�.�#*'�-.#$+.��)��+-$5 .�/*��..$./��
��./0� )/.�2$/#�
tuition fees and study costs and reward them for outstanding performance in their studies. The following table 
captures information for assistance given during 2021. 

���������� �������� �
������•
������ €��
���

1069 CIT Fee Assistance �*��..$./��
���/0� )/.� 3+ -$ )��(޲�"($)�$�'�
hardship with support towards fees and/or 
course materials. 

 юыы҂ыэёҁђьۅ

28 CIT Fee Assistance - 

CITCITSA - Student Device 
Support 

�*��..$./��
���/0� )/.� 3+ -$ )��(޲�"($)�$�'�
hardship with support towards the purchase of 
a Desktop computer or Laptop 

$5,215 

ьэђ CIT Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander 
Scholarships 

To support Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
students with their training costs. 

$86,883 

3 Soroptimist International 
Canberra 

�*($)�/$*).�!-*(��
��./�ȥ���� +/ ��!*-�! (�' �
./0� )/.��*)/$)0$)"�/# $-�./0�$ .�$)���޲$/- ���/ �
II and above program (other than English); who 
have a commitment to their studies and have 
leadership potential. 

$3,000 

($1,000 each) 

6 � *ȥ����# -.*)�Җ�
Canberra Refugee Support 
Scholarship 

�*($)�/$*).�!-*(��
��./�ȥ���� +/ ��!*-�
students who are refugees and asylum-seekers; 
undertaking or recently completed training 

$6,000 
($1,000 each) 

and intend to undertake further training in the 
foreseeable future. 

Catherine Evans, President of Soroptimist International, with two of the 2021 recipients of the Soroptimist scholarship for 
leadership Afsoon Mireshghi and Thounvenus Phetsavong 
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ABORIGINAL AND TORRES STRAIT 
ISLANDER REPORTING 

CIT is committed to promoting a culture that 
strengthens respect, relationships and opportunities 
for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples 



     

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

provides teaching and support to Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander peoples across a broad range 
of programs. Yurauna implements a community 
 )"�" ( )/�(*� '�.+ ��޲$�''4�� .$") ��/*��0$'��
cultural connections, individual capacity and 
community networks for education and employment 
outcomes for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
peoples. 

The concerns and challenges faced by Aboriginal 
and Torres Strait Islander peoples are complex, 
varied, long-term and generational. These challenges 
require an individual approach that empowers 
through respectful relationships and meaningful 
opportunities. CIT Yurauna enhances skills growth 
to deliver employment opportunities through 
pastoral assistance and provision of culturally 
appropriate courses to improve literacy, numeracy, 
communication and vocational training outcomes. 

Yurauna works across the ACT Aboriginal and Torres 
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RECONCILIATION 
��½UÜU½U-¯�
To strengthen and maintain relationships between 
��*-$"$)�'��)���*-- .��/-�$/�
.'�)� -�./�ȥ��)��*/# -�
�
��./�ȥ��)��./0� )/.��)��$)�'$"#/�*!����
�Җьє�
restrictions, CIT celebrated National Reconciliation 
Week by holding events at Reid, Bruce and Fyshwick 
campuses. Each event had a Welcome to Country, 
Smoking Ceremony, a Reconciliation treasure hunt 
and Indigenous themed barbeque, provided by 
the CIT Student Association. The Reid event was 
opened by Minister Rachel Stephen-Smith and had 
a performance by the Wiradjuri Echoes as well as 
an interactive art activity. The treasure hunt took 



     

 

 

 

 

٪

 

� �

ãÄ§�Äv�٪-�§jã٪
CHILDHOOD CENTRE 
�-ãس��ش
CIT Yurauna cares for Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander children in a culturally-centred environment 
while their parents or guardians study through a 
Job Ready program designed to remove barriers to 
enable them to achieve outcomes and employability 
skills equivalent to those of mainstream Australia. 
The program is a highly successful partnership 
2$/#�/# ������*+ -�/ ���4�/# �)*/Җ!*-Җ+-*޲/�
�*-/#.$� ��#$'�- )ҍ.�� -1$� .�+-*1$� .�!-  �#$"#Җ
quality, culturally-safe and community-focused 
early childhood education for up to 16 Aboriginal 
and Torres Strait Islander children in the ACT. The 
partnership operates by enabling children up to 
� �4 1޲-.�*'��/*��// )������҂�2#$' �/# $-�+�- )/.�*-�
guardians study at CIT Yurauna. 

In 2021, Hon. Linda Burney MP visited the YECC 
acknowledging the innovative approach of the 
provision of early childcare with the VET Sector 
and the contribution it makes to the community 
by providing learning opportunities for parents or 
guardians studying at CIT with accessible onsite high-
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Literacy programs for 
�U½�ǛǾƫǛǍƲǾȉɍȷ�ȷɅɍƫƲǾɅȷ�
Frank Williams, a young Indigenous student, 
took part in the Foundation Skills for Your Future 



 
 

�U½٪ãÄ§�Äv�٪
GRADUATION 
The 2021 end-of-year Celebration for Yurauna 
students was impacted by COVID-19 restrictions, 
#*2 1 -�$(+' ( )/$)"����
��.�! �*+/$*).�./�ȥ�
� '$1 - ����޲$/- �/ .��)��/-*+#$ .�/*�./0� )/.��/�
/# $-�#*( .ҁ��# ���޲$/- �/ .��� ޳ -�. $#+*-/��(/ ��
a dedicated group of students who had faced many 
barriers, included having to complete their programs 
online, but still achieved their desired outcomes. 
Students had already committed to ongoing training, 
while others gained employment in their chosen 
�4ҁ�0/.�!*�.�' ޲

ABORIGINAL AND TORRES 
STRAIT ISLANDER STAFF 
PROFILE 
At the end of December 2021, CIT had 23 people 
employed who identify as being from an Aboriginal 
or Torres Strait Islander background, compared 
to 19 in December 2020. This number equates to 
�++-*3$(�/ '4�эҁђ۞�*!��
�ҍ.�/*/�'�+�$�� (+'*4  �
cohort. 

Of these 23 employees, 11 employees work in CIT 
Yurauna, 12 work in other areas of CIT and 12 are 
female (or 52%). 

�# - ��- �ьы�$� )/$޲ ���)��*��0+$ ��+*.$/$*).��/��
��
2#$�#��- �.+ ��޲$�''4�!*-���*-$"$)�'�*-��*-- .��/-�$/�
peoples, representing 1% of all occupied positions. 

�
���0-�0)��./�ȥ 

75 
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WORK HEALTH AND SAFETY 

CIT is committed to the safety, security and wellbeing of 
*0-�./0� )/.��)��./�ȥҁ 

CIT has developed a strong safety culture where work 
health and safety (WHS) practices are embedded in all 
��/$1$/$ .ҁ��#$.�+-*/ �/.�./�ȥ҂�./0� )/.��)��1$.$/*-.�!-*( 
the wide range of potential risks and hazards associated 
2$/#�/# ��$1 -.$/4�*!��*0-. .�*ȥ - �ҁ 

CIT also places a strong focus on WHS training in all 
�*0-. �*ȥ -$)".�/*� ).0- �/#�/�./0� )/.��- �+- +�- � 
for industry on completion of their studies. 

�# ��
���*�-�҂��3 �0/$1 ��)��./�ȥ��- ��*(($// ��/*�
addressing WHS matters and continuously improving 
WHS practices. CIT has a comprehensive and robust 
WHS management system that ensures compliance 
with the Work Health and Safety Act 2011 (WHS Act). 

O-�j½Oؙ٪¯�F-½ã٪�v%٪
Ý-jj�-UvG�UvU½U�½UÜ-¯�
Several health, safety and wellbeing initiatives 
occurred at CIT during 2021, including: 

> implementation of rapid responses to the 
changing circumstances around COVID-19, 
including implementation of COVID-19 safe work 
practices, establishment of a COVID-19 Safety Plan 
Framework and COVID-19 safety plans for local 
work areas. COVID-19 safety spot checks were 
conducted for all areas of CIT undertaking a WHS 
spot check program for work areas which have a 
high inherent risk, such as construction 

> *ȥ -�*!�!-  �$)5( 0޳��1���$)�/$*).�/*��''�./�ȥ 

> provision of online manual handling training to 
./�ȥ�$)��- �.�2$/#�#$"#�' 1 '.�*!�(�)0�'�#�)�'$)" 
activity 

> implementation of improvements to chemical 
management practices and processes, including 
a Chemical Management Procedure, online 
training in the use of the Chemwatch chemical 
management system and additional labeling and 
disposal of old/unused chemicals in various work 
areas 
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Notes: 

1. ��/ .��- ���. ��*)�/#*. ��'�$(.�- � $1 ���4��*(��- �$)� ���(޲�#)�$�'�4 �-ҁ 

2. Data is taken at 30 June to allow for direct comparisons to be made between years. 

3. The report includes accepted claims that result in one or more weeks loss of work. 

4. 
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 HUMAN RESOURCES 
MANAGEMENT 

Ý�§gF�§�-�¤j�vvUvG�
The VET sector is continuing to undergo major 
transformation, being driven by the shared 
responsibility of reform between the Australian and 
state and territory governments and the ongoing 
impact and disruption brought about by the COVID-19 
pandemic. It is expected that the national VET sector 
will play a vital, challenging and transformational role 
$)�.0++*-/$)"��0./-�'$�ҍ.�"-*2/#��)��+-*.+ -$/4�$)�/#  
coming years. 

Our people is a strategic priority of the Strategic 
Compass. This focus on the workforce is essential for 
CIT to remain relevant to students, industry and the 
ACT community in the rapidly changing VET landscape. 
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LEARNING AND 
%-Ü-j�¤t-v½�
Learning and development strategies at CIT align 
��/$1$/$ .�2$/#�& 4��
��!0)�/$*).҂�$)�'0�$)"�./�ȥ�
induction, providing organic opportunities for growth 
and promoting connectivity across the organisation. 
Initiatives in 2021 included: 

> Launching a new online Induction unit and guiding 
documents allowing the new starter to proactively 
manage their learning journey at CIT by providing 
an outline of units to complete from within CIT 
and using the ACTGOV learn platform. These new 
starter learning plans are categorised into General 
�/�ȥ҂�� ��#$)"��/�ȥ��)��(�)�" -.҂� )��'$)"���-*'  
.+ �($��޲$�0�/$*)ҁ��  ����&�*)�/# �$)�0�/$*)�$. 
sought regularly and the content is updated to 
ensure currency. 

> Development and delivery of several learning 
sessions by the People, Performance and Culture 
/ �(���. ��*)�/# �)  �.�*!�.+ ��޲$��- �.�җ�.0�# 
as Complaint Handling, Cultural Diversity in 
Customer Service and Emotional Intelligence. 

During 2021: 

> ѐэє�./�ȥ��*(+' / ��/# ��*-&�	 �'/#��)����! /4 
training and CIT Working together, while several 
*/# -�$)#*0. �.*Ȩ�.&$''.��*0-. .�2 - �!��$'$/�/ � 
with smaller groups. 

> яєя�./�ȥ��*(+' / ��/# �*)'$) ���*-$"$)�'��)� 
Torres Strait islander Awareness units on ACT 
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Digital Focus 
To align and shape CIT teaching practice with broader 
digital initiatives, professional learning opportunities 
with a focus on digital technologies have been 
designed, developed and coordinated. The focus is 
*)� )#�)�$)"�/ ��# -���( �޲(* �/*�0. ��$"$/�'�/**'.�
already available through Adobe Creative Cloud and 
�++.��1�$'��' �/#-*0"#��$�-*.*Ȩ��ȥ$� �юёѐҁ��#$.�
has included the development of an online Teacher 
Resource and Toolkit that has been accessed over 
500 times. 


)�эыэь�/# � 
 �-)�� �(�+-*1$� ��.+ ��޲$�/-�$)$)"�
�)��- .*0-�$)"�/*�/ ��#$)"�./�ȥ�/*�!0-/# -�� 1 '*+�
their skills in virtual classroom delivery. This included: 

> implementation of an easy-to-use template (SNAP) 
for the eLearn platform 

> nine upgrades and updates to eLearn and Adobe 
Connect virtual classroom to ensure the systems 
. �0-$/4��)��./��$'$/4҂� )��'$)"�/ ��#$)"�./�ȥ�/* 
create interactive online course design 

> � '$1 -4�*!�ѓђ�/-�$)$)"�. ..$*).��// )� ���4�ђья 
./�ȥ�/*�!0-/# -�� 1 '*+�.&$''.�$)�1$-/0�'��'�..-**( 
delivery (Adobe Connect) and to create interactive 
resources using HTML5 Package, a tool that 
enables teachers to easily create interactive 
content such as videos, quizzes and presentations. 

Lunchtime Learning Sessions 
A series of professional learning sessions were 
developed in 2021 for virtual delivery informed by a 
��/���)�'4.$.�*!�./�ȥ���+��$'$/$ .ҁ��# �. ..$*).�2 - �
� .$") ��/*��- �/ ��2�- ) ..҂�$)�- �. ���( �޲(* �
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Ý�§gF�§�-�¤§�FUj-�
The following data provided by the Shared Services Reporting, Performance and HR Quality Assurance team 
� ޳ -/.��
��./�ȥ�$)!*-(�/$*)��.��/�+�4��4�є�� � (� -�эыэьҁ��# ���/�� 3�'0� .��
���*�-��( (� -.҂�./�ȥ�)*/�+�$��
�4�/# ������0�'$��� -1$� ��)��./�ȥ�*)�' �1 �2$/#*0/�+�4ҁ 

�# �)0(� -�*!��
��+�$��./�ȥ�$)�- �. ��!-*(�ѓюѐ��/�+�4��4�ьы�� � (� -�эыэы�/*�ѓѐю�!*-�/# �.�( �+ -$*��$)�эыэьҁ 

•�…�����••ƒ���	�›��	��
���…���������œ„��������

�������œ„�������� ••ƒ� ›��	��
���
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•�…���‡�›��	��
���…��������������������
����	����	���

•������ •���� •�����

��($)$./-�/$1  �ȥ$� -. 144 59 203 

�3 �0/$1  �ȥ$� -. 3 2 5 

� ) -�'�� -1$� ��ȥ$� -.��)���,0$1�' )/ 13 14 эђ 

�-*! ..$*)�' �ȥ$� -. 13 6 19 

� )$*- �ȥ$� -. 30 21 51 

� �#)$��' �ȥ$� -. 6 12 18 

VET Teacher Managers 26 13 39 

VET Teachers эяђ 244 491 

•����� ˆž�� ‡¡�� žš‡�

•�…���ˆ�›��	��
���…��ƒ���������������������	����	���

•������ •���� •�����

Casual ѓђ ђю 160 

Permanent Full-time 254 190 444 

Permanent Part-time 52 
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���…������

Under 25 
�Ÿ‡˜�

25–34 
�‡Ÿ�˜�55 and over 

‡
Ÿˆ˜�
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�‰Ÿ¡˜�
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�ˆŸ�̃ �

Headcount 
by Age 
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Under 25 25-34 35-44 45-54 55 and over 

•�…���¡�€�������������������������…�����	���

•������ •���� •�����

Average Years 9.0 9.1 9.0 

•�…���ž�����
���������	����������������������������������—����������
��������	��������

����
������������ ����������������

Total 11.1% 6.4% 
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 ECOLOGICALLY SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT 

As in past years, in 2021 CIT continued to work 
towards ACT Government targets set down through 
the ���'�$�(���/� �����#���)�"� �����)�������-� � �)�#�*�0�.� �������.����� ���0���/�$�*�)��
Act 2010. 

CIT supports ACT Government strategies to address 
climate change and reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions. This includes implementing initiatives to 
$(+-*1 � ) -"4� ȥ$�$ )�4��)��2�/ -��*). -1�/$*)�
through building upgrades, refurbishments and 
maintenance programs. 

CIT manages, monitors and reports all energy 
.4./ (.���-*..���)0(� -�*!�.*Ȩ2�- �+'�/!*-(.�
including: ENVIZI (which is the main ACT Government 
Energy reporting platform), SMA Solar Technology 
AG 2019 ©, Schneider Electrical BMS Dashboard, 



     

٪

  

 

 

  

  
 

 
�

  
 

�
 

 �

  
 

 

 

 

 
٪

٪

 

-j-�½§U��Ü-OU�j-¯�
In partnership with the Environment, Planning and 
Sustainable Development Directorate and Origin 
Energy, CIT will see electrical charging stations 
installed at Bruce, Reid and Fyshwick Campuses as 
part of an ACT Government initiative to investigate 
the use of electrical vehicles. This research program 
will form the basis of learning and discovery to better 
support electric car use for the future of Canberra.  
�
��#�.��*(($// ��/*� 3�#��/  ޳�./$�!*�  -#/�"($"(
vehicles during 2022 with electrical vehicles and will 
explore options to increase this number during 2023. 

§-�ã�jUvG�
CIT incorporates reuse and recycling into daily 
��/$1$/$ .�/*��$1 -/�2�./ �+-*�0�/.�!-*(�'�
�ҁ''޲�()�
эыэь҂��
���$1 -/ ��(�)4�2�./ �./- �(.�!-*(�'��''޲�(
for recycling by authorised facilities including 10.69 
tonnes of scrap metal recycling from collection 
centers across three major campuses and an 
estimated 1,230 litres of cooking oil from the Culinary 
School and CIT Student Association cafes canteens 
and restaurant. 

In 2021 “Grind to Ground”, began operations at CIT. 
Grind to Ground is a sustainable project turning used 
�*ȥ  �"-*0)�.��)��.�2�0./�$)/*��*(+*./��.�2 ''��.�
providing work for young adults that are living with an 
$)/ '' �/0�'��$.��$'$/4ҁ��#$.�+-*% �/�#�.��*'' �/ ��ьђѐҁѐ�
/*)) .�*!�.�2�0./��)���*ȥ  �"-*0)�.�/#-*0"#*0/�
2021. 

Other recycling programs include: 

> co-mingle waste, paper and cardboard along with 
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�$- �/*-�/ Ҩ+0�'$��. �/*-��*�4�./�ȥ FTE ёѓѐҁђ 666.5 2.9 

�*-&+'����-**޳� - � Area (m2) ьыя҂ююєҁѐђ ьыя҂ююєҁѐђ 0 
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
ANALYSIS 

�Ü-§ÜU-Ý�
In 2021 the Canberra Institute of Technology (CIT) 
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will be guaranteed by the ACT Government in the 
event that there is a larger than average demand for 
payments in any one year. For further information, 
refer to the Liquidity section below. 

�(޲� #�)�$�'�$)!*-(�/$*)�$.���. ��*)�/# ��0�$/ ��
Financial Statements for 2021. 

OPERATING RESULT CIT 
�ش½UvG�̄½�½-t-v½�§-¤�س
Revenue 

Components of revenue 

Total revenue (Figure 1) for 2021 was $110.4 million, 
�*).$./$)"�+-$(�� -�ђѐҁя�($''$*)�Ңёѓҁю۞ңۅ�!*�4'$- $1 ��
from the ACT Government as Controlled Recurrent 
Payments and $31.4 million (28.4%) generated 
from Sales of Goods and Services from Contracts 
with Customers (including local and international 
student fees and training course income as well as 
Apprentice Funding). 

•��
�����������
��­���•	�”��…�����������

Sale of Goods Sale of Goods 
and Services – and Services – 

ACT Govt., Non ACT Govt., 
��Ÿ‹ %�‹Ÿž% 

Government 
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Expenses 

Components of expenses 

Expenses totalled $122.6 million in 2021 with the 
�޲$("$.�/.*)�)/��*(+*) )/�� $)"� (+'*4  ��)��
.0+ -�))0��ђєҁѓ�($''$*)�Ңёѐҁь۞ңҁۅ�!*�. .( +3 �(*$/
Supplies and Services expenses accounted for 
$31.8 million (26.0%) (Figure 2). 

•��
������ƒ’�������­���•	�”��…�����������

Depreciation and 
Amortisation Other 

¡Ÿ¡% �Ÿ�% 
Supplies and 

Services 
�‹Ÿ
 % 

Expenses Breakdown by 
Category 

Superannuation 
Expenses Employee 

Expenses žŸ¡% 
š‹Ÿˆ% 

Comparison to budget 

Total expenses of $122.6 million in 2021 were $4.3 
million (3%) lower than budgeted. Non-salary 
expenses, namely Supplies and Services was the 
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jU¦ÄU%U½ã٪ق٪�U½�
Liquidity is a measure of the ability of an entity to 
(  /�$/.�.#*-/Җ/ -(޲�)�)�$�'�*�'$"�/$*).��.�/# 4�
fall due. The working capital ratio (ratio of current 
assets to current liabilities) is a common indicator for 
liquidity and measures the ability to fund short-term 
liabilities from short-term assets. 

The current working capital ratio of 0.56:1 is slightly 
lower than the budget target of 0.59:1 due to a 
�*(�$)�/$*)�*!�*ȥ. //$)"�!��/*-.�$)�'0�$)"���#$"# -�
than budgeted cash balance and higher payables 
and Other Liabilities (unspent JobTrainer funding) 
balances. 

At 31 December 2021, Current Assets of $20.1 million 
(excluding Assets Held for Distribution to Owner) were 
less than the total Current Liabilities ($36.1 million) 
by $15.9 million. This is not considered a liquidity 
risk as along with external revenue, cash needs are 
funded through Controlled Recurrent Payments 
appropriation from the ACT Government on a cash-
needs basis. 

Further to the analysis of the liquidity position, it is 
$(+*-/�)/�/*�)*/ �/#�/���!*�./޲ 0"#��(+'*4  �� )*#/'
$25.0 million (Long Service Leave and Annual Leave 
��ээҁё�($''$*)ңۅ- ��'���� ޲$...��0-- )/�
$��$'$/$ .�0)� - 
Accounting Standards, based on historical data, less 
than $6.0 million for Long Service Leave and Annual 
Leave is paid out in any one year. 

–��•������������

�
������€������

€��
����
��� ­
	�����
��� €��
����
�
�
£¤


� £¤


� £¤


�

Cash and Cash Equivalents 15,333 11,536 ьь҂ђяѐ 

Receivables 3,054 2,900 э҂яєђ 

Other Assets ь҂ђёѐ 1,900 1,940 

•������
������€������ Œ�Ž� �
‘�š�� �‹‘‡‡‹� �‹‘�ž��

�
���������…��������

Payables 4,068 2,200 3,452 

 эя҂єђы 23,500 24,112 ./޲ ( �   4*'+)�

Other Liabilities ђ҂ыяя 2,080 2,109 

•������
���������…�������� ‡‹‘
ž�� �¡‘¡ž
� �‰‘‹¡‡�
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of the ACT Legislative Assembly  

Opinion  

I have audited the financial statements of the Canberra Institute of Technology for the year ended 
31 December 2021 which comprise the operating statement, balance sheet, statement of changes 
in equity, statement of cash flows, statement of appropriation and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In my opinion, the financial statements:  

(i) present fairly, in all material respects, the Canberra Institute of Technology’s financial 
position as at 31 December 2021, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year 
then ended; and 

(ii) are presented in accordance with the Financial Management Act 1996 and comply with 
Australian Accounting Standards.  

Basis for opinion 

I conducted the audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities 
under the standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements’ section of this report.  

I am independent of the Canberra Institute of Technology in accordance with the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (Code). I have also fulfilled my 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion.  

Responsibilities of the Canberra Institute of Technology for the financial statements 

The Governing Board of the Canberra Institute of Technology is responsible for: 

�x preparing and fairly presenting the financial statements in accordance with the 
Financial Management Act 1996, and relevant Australian Accounting Standards; 

�x determining the internal controls necessary for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements so that they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error 
or fraud; and 

�x assessing the ability of the Canberra Institute of Technology to continue as a going concern 
and disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements. 

  

 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of the ACT Legislative Assembly  

Opinion  

I have audited the financial statements of the Canberra Institute of Technology for the year ended 
31 December 2021 which comprise the operating statement, balance sheet, statement of changes 
in equity, statement of cash flows, statement of appropriation and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In my opinion, the financial statements:  

(i) present fairly, in all material respects, the Canberra Institute of Technology’s financial 
position as at 31 December 2021, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year 
then ended; and 

(ii) are presented in accordance with the Financial Management Act 1996 and comply with 
Australian Accounting Standards.  

Basis for opinion 

I conducted the audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities 
under the standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements’ section of this report.  

I am independent of the Canberra Institute of Technology 
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Under the Financial Management Act 1996, the Auditor-General is responsible for issuing an 
audit report that includes an independent opinion on the financial statements of the 
Canberra Institute of Technology. 

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes my opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of the financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

�x identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

�x obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Canberra Institute of Technology’s internal controls; 

�x 



��
��

�� �� �� �� �� �� ��
��

�� ��
��

��

��

��

�� �� ��

��

�� �� �� �� ��

�� �� ��

��

��

��

��

�� ����

�,�]�������v���Á�}�Œ���•
�Z�]�������v �Á�}�Œ�����•

�����v�����Œ�Œ�����/�v�•�š�]�š�µ�š�����}�( �d�����Z�v�}�o�}�P�Ç��
�&�]�v���v���]���o���^�š���š���u���v�š�• 

�&�}�Œ �š�Z�� �z�����Œ ���v������ �ï�í ���������u�����Œ �î�ì�î�í 

�^�š���š���u���v�š �}�( �Z���•�‰�}�v�•�]���]�o�]�š�Ç 

�/�v���u�Ç���}�‰�]�v�]�}�v�U���š�Z�����(�]�v���v���]���o���•�š���š���u���v�š�•�����Œ�����]�v�����P�Œ�����u���v�š���Á�]�š�Z���š�Z���������v�����Œ�Œ�����/�v�•�š�]�š�µ�š�����}�(���d�����Z�v�}�o�}�P�Ç�[�•���������}�µ�v�š�•��

���v�� �Œ�����}�Œ���• ���v�� �(���]�Œ�o�Ç �Œ���(�o�����š���š�Z�����(�]�v���v���]���o���}�‰���Œ���š�]�}�v�• �}�(���š�Z���������v�����Œ�Œ�����/�v�•�š�]�š�µ�š�����}�(���d�����Z�v�}�o�}�P�Ç���(�}�Œ���š�Z�����Ç�����Œ��

���v������ �ï�í�����������u�����Œ���î�ì�î�í�����v�� �š�Z�����(�]�v���v���]���o���‰�}�•�]�š�]�}�v �}�(���š�Z���������v�����Œ�Œ�����/�v�•�š�]�š�µ�š�����}�(���d�����Z�v�}�o�}�P�Ç���}�v���š�Z���š�������š���X��

���Œ���]�P���^�o�}���v 



     100 Canberra Institute of Technology Annual Report 2021 



    
  

       
  

     

        
       
       
       

        

         
       

      
            

       
       

       
       

   
   
       

       

       
   

   

       
       

 
 

  

 
   

 

 

 
   

 

   



     

    
  

    
  

     

        
       
       
       

        

Canberra 

N
o

.
 

R e c e i v a b l e s  -





     

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
  

  
  

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



    
     

       
  

  
  

     
      
      

      

  



     

    
      

       
  

    
       
        
        
        

          

        
         

         

        
           

          
     

             
    

      
            

      

            

      

              

   
    

Hiddenwords

Canberra Institute of Technology 
Statement of Cash Flow



    
   

       
  

     

     
     
     
     
   

     
   

     

     

     
  

   

                   
           

                     

                 
        

         

      

   
   
   
  

   

   

    

           

   

  
   

    

   





    
         

       
  

               

     

             

              

                 

               

  

                

                 

                   

               

                

                
                

               

                   

                 
                  

                  

                

                 
                

         . ( )         6   1   



     

    
         

       
  

            

              

  

          
      

              

 
 

         

                
              

 
   
      
      
   

       

      

      

 
                     

                          

 

  

Hiddenwords

Canberra Institute of 



    
         

       
  

                

                  
       

               

                 
   

                   
      

              
      

  

 
    
      
      

      

      

    
           
   

      

      
      

    
           
   

 

 



     

    
         

       
  

         
  
   
     
     
 

       
           

     

      

      
 

 
      

     

     

 
                 

    

  
 
 

        

 



    
         

       
  

        
 
   
     
     
 

     

      

     

     

     

 
 

                     

   

                       

                    

                      

           
  
 
 

        
 
   
     
     
 

      
          

     
     

     
 

Hiddenwords

Canberra Institute of Technology 
Notes to and Forming Part of the 



     

    
         

       
  

         
 
   
     
     

     

     

     

      

     

     

     

    

  

 

 

 

 



    
         

       
  

         
 
   
     
     
 

      

     

     

      

     

     
     

 
 

     

     
 

     

 
                   

 

 
 

        
 
   
      
      
   

 



     

    
         

       
  

        

                

                  

    
  

   
     
     

 
      

       
          
      
 

     

 
 

          

                
               

                  
             

      

   
     
     
      

      

     

       

     

                    

Hiddenwords

Canberra Institute of Technology 
Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

NOTE 12. AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION 

Auditor’s remunerationconsistsof financialauditservicesprovidedto CITbythe ACTAuditOffice. Auditor 's 

remunerationis includedunder ‘Other’ in Note 9 – Supplies andServices.Noother serviceswereprovided by 

the ACT Audit Office. 

Audit Services 

Audit Fees Paid or Payable to 
the ACT Audit Office 

Total Audit Fees 

Total Auditor's Remuneration 

Consolidated CIT 
2021 2020 2021 2020 
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 

216 196 166 160 

216 196 166 160 

216 196 166 160 

NOTE 13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CIT holdsbankaccountswith Westpac Banking Corporation Limited as partof the ACT Government’s 
whole-of-governmentbankingarrangements.CITearns intereston thesedeposits,atarate of 0.90%. 

CIT’s TermDeposithasbeenheldwith IllawarraMutualBankLimitedsince2015andiscurrentlyearning an 
interestrate of 0.45%.
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NOTE 15. ASSETS HELD FOR DISTRIBUTION TO OWNER 

CIThasclassifiedthe land andbuildingsat the WatsonCampusas ‘assets heldfordistributionto owners’, as 
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NOTE 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT – CONTINUED 

Fair Value Hierarchy 
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Intangible Asset - - - -
Capital Works in Progress Expensed(b) (175) (24) (199)

Carrying Amount at the End of theReporting Period 349 1 307 172 1 828

Consolidated 2020
Carrying Amount at the Beginning of the

Reporting Period - 1 549 470 2 019
Additions 35 8 372 133 8 540
Capital Works in Progress Completed and Transferred to

Property, Plant and Equipment - (6 966) - (6 966)
Capital Works in Progress Completed and Transferred to -

Intangible Asset - (395) (395)
Capital Works in Progress Expensed (649) (208) (857)

Carrying Amount at the End of theReporting Period 35 2 306 - 2 341

Consolidated 2021
Plant and

Equipment Buildings Software
Works in Works in Works in 
Progress Progress Progress Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Carrying Amount at the Beginning of the
Reporting Period 35 2 306 - 2 341

Additions(a) 314 6 130 196 6 640
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NOTE 21. LEASE LIABILITIES – CIT AS A LESSEE – CONTINUED 

Right-of-Use Assets 

Buildings Motor Vehicles ICT Equipment Total 
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 

Balance at 1 January 2021 3 731 177 31 3 939 

Depreciation Charge (711) (111) (27) (849) 

Balance at 31 December 2021 3 020 66 4 3 090 

Balance at 1 January 2020 4 442 325 109 4 876 

Depreciation Charge (711) (132) (78) (921) 

Changes in right-of-use assets due to 
changes in lease liability - (16) - (16) 

Balance at 31 December 2020 3 731 177 31 3 939 

Lease Liabilities 

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities at 31 December 2021 based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is shown 

in the table below. 

Lease liabilities 
Total undiscounted included in the 

lease liabilities Balance Sheet 

< 1 year ($’000) 1 - 5 years ($’000) > 5 years ($’000) ($’000) ($’000) 

892 2 944 - 3 836 3 626 

The amounts
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Canberra Institute of Technology 
Appendix A – Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements 

Forms Part of Note 2 of the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

APPENDIX A – BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – CONTINUED 

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION 

CIT holds$20,000of paid-upcapital in CITSolutionsPty Limited(CITSolutions). 

The consolidated financial statements arefor thegroupcomprisingCITand CITSolutions.CITSolutions isa 

wholly-ownedsubsidiaryof CIT,formed for the purposesof undertaking entrepreneurial and commercial 

activitieson CIT’s behalf.All inter-entity balances,including unrealisedprofitsand losses,have been 
eliminated on consolidation.Thefinancial statements of CITSolutionsareprepared for thesame reporting 

period asCIT,usingaccountingpoliciesthatare consistentwith those of CIT. 

REPORTING PERIOD 

These financial statements state the financial performance,changesin equity and cashflowsof CITfor the 

year ended31 December2021togetherwith the financial position of CITat31 December2021. 

COMPARATIVE FIGURES 

Budget Figures 

To facilitateacomparisonwith the BudgetPapers,asrequiredbythe Financial Management Act 1996, budget 

information for 2021hasbeen presentedin the financial statements.Budgetnumbersin the financial 

statements are the originalbudgetnumbersthatappearin the 2021 BudgetPapers. 

Prior Year Comparatives 

Comparative informationhasbeendisclosedin respectof the previousperiodforamountsreportedin the 

financial statements,exceptwherean Australian AccountingStandarddoesnotrequire comparative 

information to be disclosed. 

Wherethe presentationor classification of itemsin the financial statements isamended,the comparative 

amountshave beenreclassifiedwherepractical.Whereareclassificationhas occurred,the nature, amount 
and reason for the reclassificationisprovided. 

Rounding 

Allamountsin the financial statements have been roundedto the nearestthousand dollars ($’000). Use of the 

"-" symbolrepresents zeroamountsor amounts rounded downto zero. 

GOING CONCERN 

The 2021 financial statements havebeenpreparedon agoingconcernbasis.At31 December 2021,current 

liabilities ($36 million) exceeded current asset ($27 million) by $9 million. However, this is not considered a 

liquidity riskasthe LSL EmployeeEntitlements of $15mareunlikelyto be calleduponduringthe nextreporting 
period and historicalanalysis showsthaton average only aminor portion of the entitlements are paid out in 

any one year. 
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Canberra Institute of Technology 
Appendix C – Initial Application of Accounting Standards 

Forms Part of Note 2 of the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

APPENDIX B – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – INCOME 

REVENUE RECOGNITION 

Revenueisrecognisedin accordancewith AASB15RevenuefromContracts with Customerswherethe 

contractisenforceable and containssufficiently specificperformanceobligations,otherwise revenueis in the 

scope of AASB1058 Incomeof Not-For-ProfitEntities,or AASB1004 Contributions Wherethe performance 

obligationsof the contracthavenotbeen metat the reportingdate,revenueis heldasContractLiabilitieson 
the Balance Sheet. th Td [(B)-11 (al)-18 (an)-2lMCIDth B 4 T  



    
        
         

       
 

 

        

    

                  
               

                

               

  

                 

    

                

               

                  

      

                    

              

                 

               

                  

        

                   

                

         

     

                   
    

             

                  

                    
    

  

          

Canberra Institute of Technology 
Appendix C – Initial Application of Accounting Standards 

Forms Part of Note 2 of the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES – INCOME – CONTINUED 

STUDENT FEES AND CHARGES 

CIT earns the majority of itscontractrevenuefromprovisionof educationservices.The financial yearforCIT 
coincideswith the academicyear.In the majority of cases,the performanceobligationsundercontracts 

classified asGeneralStudentFeesd [(c)-76 (cU)-71 (D)-18 7(nt)]TJun6u1-10 (S96 Tc 0.0068 (n)0p]TJ /TT22(c)-37 ( Td [(y)g36 2i)-18 )-36.9 (id)-(ie)-39 (d )]TJ -9mme(f)86 u3lC.3m08 -8e(Tc 0.00 )]TJ /TT3 1 Tf 0 Tc 32the 
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Canberra Institute of Technology 
Appendix C – Initial Application of Accounting Standards 

Forms Part of Note 2 of the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – EXPENSES 

NOTE7 – EMPLOYEEEXPENSES 

Employee benefits include: 

�x short-termemployeebenefitssuch as wagesand salaries,annualleaveloading,annualleave, 

superannuationand applicableon-costsif expected to be settled whollybeforetwelvemonths after the 

end of the annual reportingperiodin whichthe employees renderthe relatedservices; 

�x other long-termbenefitssuch aslongserviceleaveand annualleave;and 

�x termination benefits. -O



    
        
         

       
 

 

       

      

 

                

        

   

                 

                

            

 

                    

                  

               

         

      

                 

       

           

     

          

       

    

    
      

      

     

                 

       

              

  

Canberra Institute of Technology 
Appendix C – Initial Application of Accounting Standards 

Forms Part of Note 2 of the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES – EXPENSES – CONTINUED 

NOTE 9 – SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 

Insurance 

Major risksareinsuredthroughthe ACTInsuranceAuthority. Theexcesspayable,underthisarrangement, 

varies dependingon each classof insuranceheld. 

Repairs and Maintenance 

CIT undertakesmajor cyclicalmaintenanceon its assets.Wherethe maintenance leadsto an upgradeof the 

asset,and increases the servicepotential of the existingasset,the costis capitalised.Maintenance expenses 

which donot increase theservice potential of the assetare expensed. 

Leases 

Lease payments thatare notsubjectto AASB16are recorded as an expense in the OperatingStatementona 

straight-line basis overthe termof the lease.Followingthe adoption of AASB16,mostof the lease 

commitmentshave beenreclassified as Right-of-UseAssetsand Lease Liabilities.The leases notcapturedby 

AASB16 includeshorttermand lowvalue leases. 

NOTE10 – DEPRECIATIONANDAMORTISATION 

Amortisation is used in relation to intangible assets and depreciation is applied to physical assets such as 

buildings,infrastructureassets,and plantand equipment. 

Land has an unlimited useful life and isthereforenotdepreciated. 

Heritage Assetsarenotdepreciated. 

Depreciationor amortisationfor non-currentassetsisdetermined asfollows: 

Class of Asset Depreciation/Amortisation Useful Life (Years) 

Buildings Straight-Line 5-100 

Leasehold Improvements Straight-Line 2-10 



     

    
        
         

       
 

     

     

                  

  

             

           

                    

               

                
                

                

                 

       

       

                 

                   

                     

          

    

  

             

              

    

               

                  

                  

    

                

  

         

                  

             

 

 

Canberra Institute of Technology 
Appendix C – Initial Application of Accounting Standards 

Forms Part of Note 2 of the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – ASSETS 

ASSETS – CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT 

Assetsare classified ascurrentwheretheyare expectedto be realisedwithin 12 months after thereporting 

date. 

Assetswhich donot fall within the currentclassification areclassifiedasnon-current. 

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates -Fair Value of Assets 

CIT has made asignificantestimate regarding the fair valueof its assets.Land hasbeen recorded at the market 

value of similar properties as determinedbyan independentvaluer.Buildingsarerecordedatdepreciated 

replacementcostfor specialised buildingsand atcurrentpricesasdetermined byan external valuer fornon-
specialisedbuildings.Heritageassetshavebeen recorded at fair value based oncurrent replacementcostand 

market value as determined by CIT. The valuation uses significant judgements and estimates to determine fair 

value, including the appropriate indexation figure and quantum of assets held. The fair value of assets is 

subjectto managementassessmentbetween formalvaluations. 

NOTE13 – CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTS 

Cash includescashatbank and cash on hand.The Cash equivalents are short-term,highly liquid investments 

that are readily convertibleto known amounts of cash and which aresubjectto an insignificantrisk of changes 

in value. Bankoverdraftsareincluded incashand cashequivalentsin the Statementof CashFlowsbutnot in 

the cash and cash equivalents line on the BalanceSheet. 

NOTE14 – RECEIVABLES 

Accounts Receivable 

Accountsreceivable (includingstudentreceivables and other tradereceivables)aremeasured atamortised 

cost,with any adjustmentsto the carryingamountbeingrecordedin the Operating Statement. 

Impairment Loss -Receivables 

The allowance for expectedcreditlossesrepresentsthe amountof trade receivables and studentreceivables 

that CITestimateswill notberepaid.CITdeterminesthe allowancefor impairmentlossesisbasedonobjective 

evidence and areviewof overdue balances.CITmeasuresexpectedcreditlossesof afinancialinstrumentin a 

way that reflects: 

(a) anunbiasedandprobability-weightedamountthat isdeterminedbyevaluatingarangeof possible 

outcomes; 

(b) the time value of money; and 

(c) reasonableandsupportableinformationthat is availablewithout unduecostor effort at the reportingdate 

aboutpastevents,current conditions and forecasts of futureeconomicconditions (AASB9.5.5.17). 
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Canberra Institute of Technology 
Appendix C – Initial Application of Accounting Standards 

Forms Part of Note 2 of the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – ASSETS – CONTINUED 

NOTE14 – RECEIVABLES – CONTINUED 

The amountof the expectedcreditlossisrecognisedin the Operating Statement.The allowancefor 
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Canberra Institute of Technology 
Appendix C – Initial Application of Accounting Standards 

Forms Part of Note 2 of the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – ASSETS – CONTINUED 

NOTE17 – PROPERTY,PLANTANDEQUIPMENT – CONTINUED 

Fair value for land and non-specialised buildings ismeasured usingthe marketapproachvaluationtechnique. 

This approach usespricesand otherrelevantinformationgeneratedbymarkettransactions involving identical 

or similar assets. 

Fair value for specialised buildings,and some heritageassetsismeasured byreferenceto the costof replacing 

the remainingfuture economicbenefitsembodiedin the asseti.e.depreciated replacementcost.This isthe 

costapproach valuation technique.Forotherheritageassets,the fair valueismeasuredusingthe market 

approach valuation technique.This approach usessales pricesand other relevantinformation generated by 
market transactions involving similar assets or works by artists with similar standing/style. 

Heritage assetsartworkscompriseworksproduced bystudent-19 (n)27 (t)]TJ 0.001 Tco013 Td [(tr793 (o)77a29 ((g)-32 01 Tw 4.545 0 Td[(u)[(tr793 (f6 (ue)-102 (.)]TJ 0.013 Tc -0.013 31)-75 (e)-p6 (e)-1.03.063 4)]TJ (-19n2 Tc -0 0 Td )-7 (r)-71 (el)-37 (ev)-w)-4)-18 (o)46 (s)-(x (e)-1h Td [(ib)64 (o)6(in)-12 ( (s)Tj 7 0 ,2 (c)-25 (h)-75 (ni2(tr793 (f6 (ue)-117 Tw 1.926 0 Td [(s)-11 10 Tw 2.849 0w (e )]h (s )]38 Tc 0.h -0.027 Tc 0.027 Tw 2.849 0 T4s)-e)-109 (t )]9 (e )]TJ -0.015 Tc 0.015 Tw 1.541 0 Td [(f)-)-75 (e)-6 (r )]TJ -0.017 Tc 0.0ti)-28 (s)-21 (ts )47.1 ( (th)25 (rk)1-30 (e)]TJ 0.001 Tc -0.001 Tw 2.31 062.541 0 Td8 (erew 4.928r)4 0.8 (s)i)3c -0 2.928 0 Td 2 0 Td [(m)69 (ea)56 (s)459)-18 (o)40 (ed)]TJ -0.006 Tc 0.006 T4.545 0 Td [31eTJ d skes 
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Canberra Institute of Technology 
Appendix C – Initial Application of Accounting Standards 

Forms Part of Note 2 of the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – ASSETS – CONTINUED 

NOTE17 – PROPERTY,PLANTANDEQUIPMENT – CONTINUED 

Anyimpairmentlossfor landand buildingsisrecognised 
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Canberra Institute of Technology 
Appendix C – Initial Application of Accounting Standards 

Forms Part of Note 2 of the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – ASSETS – CONTINUED 

NOTE16 – PROPERTY,PLANTANDEQUIPMENT – CONTINUED 
Heritage Assets 

Valuation technique: Heritageassetswherethereisnoactive market(produced bynon-recognisedartists) are 
valued usingunobservable inputs. 

Inputs: In determiningthe valueof theseartworks,unobservableinputs weredevelopedwith regard given to 

aesthetic quality,medium,valuer knowledgeof the market,and recentsalesof worksbyartists with similar 
standing/style to the non-recognisedartists. 

There have beenno changes to the abo.09 0 Td9  [(v)-26 (al)-18 ()-46at(g)10i(w)-18 (o)-28(en )]TJ -0.063 Tc 0.063 T6 4.545 0 Td (ut)-36 (e)-204 (c)501 (h)-75n[(i)-64q(r)-76u (e)-204sr pring



    
        
         

       
 

        

             

            

                   

                 

  

                

              
  

                

   

                    

                

      

                  

                 
 

                   

     

                     

          

                

                

                

    

                 

                

    

                 

           

                 

                

        

 

 

Canberra Institute of Technology 
Appendix C – Initial Application of Accounting Standards 

Forms Part of Note 2 of the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – LIABILITIES – CONTINUED 

NOTE 21 – LEASELIABILITIES – CITASALESSEE – CONTINUED 

�x amountsexpectedto be payablebyCITunderresidual valueguarantees; 

�x the exercisepriceof apurchase option if the lesseeisreasonablycertain to exercise thatoption,and 

�x paymentsof penaltiesfor terminating thelease,if the lease termreflects the lesseeexercisingthat 

termination option. 

After the commencementdate,leaseliabilitiesare measuredbyreducing thecarryingamountto reflectthe 

lease paymentsmade;and remeasuring thecarryingamountto reflectany reassessmentor lease 
modifications. 

Lease payments to be made underreasonably certainextension optionsarealso included in the measurement 

of the liability. 

At inception of acontract,CITassesseswhether alease exists – i.e.does the contractconvey the rightto 

control the use of an identified assetfor aperiodof time in exchangeforconsideration. 

This involves an assessment of whether: 

�x the contract involves the use of an identified asset – this may be explicitly or implicitly identified 

within the agreement. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right then there is no identified 
asset; 

�x CIT has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset 

throughout the period of use; 

�x CIT has the right to direct the use of the asset i.e. decision making rights in relation to changing how 

and for what purpose the asset is used. 

CIT has elected not to separate non-leasecomponents fromleasecomponents for leases,exceptfor outgoings 

on the Tuggeranonglease.Theseare recognised as an expenseasincurredin the operatingstatement. 

Atthe lease commencementdate,CITrecognisedaright-of-useassetand associated lease liability for the 

lease term. 

The right-of-useassetismeasured using the costmodel wherecoston initial recognitioncomprisesthe lease 

liability, initial directcosts,prepaid leasepayments,estimated costof removaland restoration lessany lease 

incentives received. 

The right-of-useassetisdepreciated overthe leasetermon astraight-line basis and assessed for impairment 

in accordancewith the impairmentof assetsaccountingpolicy. 

The lease liability is initially measuredat the presentvalueof the remainingleasepaymentsat the 

commencementof the lease.The discountrate isthe incremental borrowingratepublished byACTTreasury 

which mostcloselymatchesthe remainingleaseterm. 
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Canberra Institute of Technology 
Appendix C – Initial Application of Accounting Standards 

Forms Part of Note 2 of the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – LIABILITIES – CONTINUED 

NOTE22 – EMPLOYEEBENEFITS – CONTINUED 

The provision forannualleaveand longserviceleaveincludesestimated on-costs.Astheseon-costsonly 

become payable if the employeetakes annual and longserviceleavewhile in-service,the probability that 

employeeswill take annualand longservice leave while in servicehasbeentaken into accountin estimating 

the liability for on-costs. 

Annual leave and long service leaveliabilitiesare classified ascurrentliabilities in the BalanceSheetwhere 

there are no unconditional rightsto deferthe settlementof the liability forat least12 months. Conditional 

longserviceleaveliabilitiesareclassifiedas non-currentbecause CIThas an unconditional rightto deferthe 

settlementof the liability until the employeehascompleted therequisiteyearsof service. 

Significant Accounting Judgementsand Estimates – EmployeeBenefits 

Significantjudgementshave beenapplied in estimatingthe liability foremployee benefits.The estimated 

liability for annualand longservice leave0 Td [(C)-25 (IT)]TJ -0.0.037 Tw 17 Tw 1.388 0 T(lie)36 (012)-1e17 Tw 1.7 (b)-127 Tw Lal 



     

    
        
         

       
 

         

 





     

    
        
         

       
 

             

              

                

                     
                  

         

 

 

Canberra Institute of Technology 
Appendix C – Initial Application of Accounting Standards 

Forms Part of Note 2 of the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

APPENDIXC – IMPACTOFACCOUNTINGSTANDARDSISSUEDBUTYETTO BEAPPLIED 

Several newand revisedAccountingStandardsand Interpretations have been issued bythe Australian 

Accounting StandardsBoard.TheseStandardshave beenassessed andit has beendetermined that they do 

notapply to the current reportingperiod,are not relevantto CITor will nothave amaterial impacton the 
Financial Statements.Atthis stage, those applyingto futurereportingperiods are also notexpectedto have an 

impactonthe Financial Statements of CIT. 
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ASSET MANAGEMENT 

�Ü-§ÜU-Ý�
CIT assets are predominately located at the Reid, 
Bruce and Fyshwick campuses and include the 
ownership and management of assets of varying age 
and condition across the following asset classes: 

> land and buildings 

> plant and equipment 

> heritage assets 

> .*Ȩ2�- ҁ 

Additional assets are located at: 

> Gungahlin Learning Centre (shared community 
space under an MOU) 

> Tuggeranong Learning Centre (10-year property 
lease to April 2026) 

> Watson campus (sub-leased to the Academy of 
Interactive Entertainment to be returned to the 
ACT Government in 2022) 

> Monterey Student Residences. 

The replacement cost of land and buildings at the 
three campuses (Reid, Bruce and Fyshwick) of around 
35 hectares in total, is $590 million. 
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UPGRADE 
Asset condition audits are undertaken and when 
��� ޲$/( �$.�)  �$)"�/*�� �- +'�� ��*-�0+"-�� �҂�
the relevant items are incorporated into the capital 
programs. Although planned asset maintenance is 
included in the operating budgets, additional assets 
will be included as part of the planned maintenance 
regime for 2022. 

An audit of all boilers is planned for 2022 with 
anticipation to upgrade to more sustainable solutions 
as part of the commitment of the ACT Government 
to reducing the carbon emission footprint of the 
Canberra region. 

Audits conducted in 2021 include: 

> A lighting audit across all campuses with the 
intent to upgrade to more sustainable LED lighting 
solutions during 2022-23. 

> An audit of cooling towers on the Bruce campus 
will result in the upgrade of three cooling towers 
during 2022-23. 

> A Risk Insurance Survey was conducted at 
Fyshwick by an independent auditor outlining 
recommendations to reduce the risk of potential 
damage to property. Corrective measures will be 
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GOVERNMENT CONTRACTING 

CIT undertakes procurement activities for a range of 
goods, services and works. Procurement processes 
within CIT adhere to the Government Procurement 
Act 2001 and the ���*�1� �-�)�(� �)�/�����-�*���0�-� �(� �)�/����� �"�0�'���/�$�*�)��
2007. Procurement expenditure, selection and 
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�§-�½UÜ-�̄-§ÜU�-¯�¤�v-j�
The Creative Services Panel is a whole of government 
arrangement for the purchase of creative services, 
including: 

> Advertising 

> Marketing 

> Communications and engagement 

> Digital 

> Graphic design 

> Photography and video 

> Media buying. 

During the 2021 calendar year, CIT spent a total of 
$41,035.16 with service providers included on the 
panel. This includes Audio and Video Production, 
Design, Media (Radio, Television, Newspapers) and 
�/�ȥ�� �-0$/( )/���1 -/$.$)"ҁ���%*-�+0-�#�. .�Ң*1 -�
$25,000) through this panel are published on the ACT 
Government Contracts Register. 
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STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE 

 

  

INDEPENDENT LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORT 
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In a limited assurance engagement, I perform procedures such as making inquiries with 
representatives of the Canberra Institute of Technology, performing analytical review procedures 
and examining selected evidence supporting the results of accountability indicators. The 
procedures used depend on my judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the results reported for the accountability indicators. 

Limitations on the scope 

The procedures performed in a limited assurance engagement are less in extent than those 
required in a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently the level of assurance obtained 
is substantially lower than the assurance that would have been obtained had a reasonable 
assurance engagement been performed. Accordingly, I do not express a reasonable assurance 
opinion on the statement of performance. 

This limited assurance engagement does not provide assurance on the: 

�x relevance or appropriateness of the accountability indicators reported in the statement of 
performance or the related performance targets; 

�x accuracy of explanations provided for variations between actual and targeted performance 
due to the often subjective nature of such explanations; or 

�x adequacy of controls implemented by the Canberra Institute of Technology. 

Ajay Sharma 
Assistant Auditor-General, Financial Audit 
25 March 2022 
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Canberra Institute of Technology 
Statement of Performance 

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

OUTPUT CLASS 1: CANBERRA INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY 

Output 1: Provision of Vocational Education and Training Services 

1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 

Notes 

31 December 
2021 

Target 
$‘000 

31 December 
2021 

Actual Result 
$‘000 

Variance 
%* 

Total Cost 126,862 122,612 (3) 
Controlled Recurrent Payments 78,374 75,386 (4) 

1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021 

Notes 

30 June 
2021 

Tarot 
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Statement of Performance 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 



 
  

   
 

    
  

 
          

           
       

 
            

         
 

            
 

 
   

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Canberra Institute of Technology 
Statement of Performance 

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

The above Statement of Performance should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes. 

* Nominal Hours, Program Enrolments, Module Pass Rates, Program Completions 
and Average Controlled Recurrent Payment per Nominal Hour will be discontinued 
as Accountability Indicators from 1 July 2022. 

These measures only relate to training delivered under CIT’s ‘Profile’ funding scheme 
and do not include students enrolled under other schemes. 

Notes on variances are provided under the Explanation of Material Variances section 
below. 

**Variance from Target: The percentage variance is calculated by subtracting the 
target from the outcome and dividing this difference by the target. 

3 
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Canberra Institute of Technology 
Statement of Performance 

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

Accountability Indicator Definitions 

a) Program Enrolments (enrolments in a course of study, comprising one or more 
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COMPLIANCE INDEX 

��t¤jU�v�-٪Uv%-â٪ֿ׀־׀�
The CIT 2021 Annual Report must comply with the 
Annual Report Directions (the Directions) made under 
section 8 of the Annual Reports Act. The Directions 
are found at the ACT Legislation Register: 
legislation. act.gov.au 

The Compliance Statement indicates the subsections, 
under Parts 1 to 5 of the Directions, that are 
applicable to CIT and the location of information that 
.� ҁ./( ) -$0, -  . #/ . ޲.$/

¤�§½٪ֿ٪%U§-�½U�v¯٪
�Ü-§ÜU-Ý�
The requirements under Part 1 of the Directions relate 
to the purpose, timing and distribution, and records 
keeping of annual reports. The CIT 2021 Annual 
Report complies with all subsections of Part 1 under 
the Directions. 

To meet Section 15 Feedback, Part 1 of the 
Directions, contact details for CIT are provided within 
the CIT 2021 Annual Report to provide readers with 
the opportunity to provide feedback. 

PART 2 REPORTING 
-v½U½ã٪�vvÄ�j٪§-¤�§½٪
§-¦ÄU§-t-v½¯�
The requirements within Part 2 of the Directions are 
mandatory for all reporting entities and CIT complies 
2$/#��''�.0�. �/$*).ҁ��# �$)!*-(�/$*)�/#�/�.�� #/�. ޲.$/
requirements of Part 2 is found in the CIT 2021 Annual 
Report as follows: 

A. �-�).($//��޲$/- ��'�/ ҂�.  �+�" �ђҁ 

B. Organisational Overview and Performance, 
inclusive of all subsections, see pages 14–90. 

C. Financial Management Reporting, inclusive of all 
subsections, see pages 92–180. 

¤�§½٪ׁ٪§-¤�§½UvG٪�ã٪
EXCEPTION 
CIT has nil information to report by exception under 
Part 3 of the Directions for the 2021 reporting year. 

PART 4 DIRECTORATE AND 
¤Ä�jU�٪¯-�½�§٪��%ã٪
SPECIFIC ANNUAL REPORT 
§-¦ÄU§-t-v½¯�
CIT is not required to report under Part 4 of the 
Directions. 

٪ÝO�j-٪�F٪׃٪½§�¤
G�Ü-§vt-v½��vvÄ�j�
REPORTING 
�0.� 1޲� #/�!*�-0*�. �/$*).�*!���-/�ѐ�*!�/# ��$- �/$*).�
apply to CIT. Consistent with the Directions, the 
information satisfying these requirements is 
reported in the one place for all ACT Public Service 
directorates, as follows: 

> Human Rights, see the annual report of the Justice 
and Community Safety Directorate 

> Legal Services Directions, see the annual report of 
the Justice and Community Safety Directorate 

> �0�'$��� �/*-��/�)��-�.��)���*-&!*-�   .�҂ '޲*-�� 
the annual State of the Service Report 

> Territory Records, see the annual report of Chief 
Minister, Treasury and Economic Development 
Directorate. 

The CIT 2021 Annual Report can be found 
at cit.edu.au. 
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